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NOTICE OF 9™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Ninth Annual General Meeting of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
will be held on Wednesday, 2™ July, 2025 at 11:00 a.m. at the Board Room, 30™ Floor, World
Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus, 26/1, Dr. Rajkumar Road, Malleswaram - Rajajinagar,
Bangalore- 560055 Yo transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited standalone and consclidated financial statement
of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 included audited balance sheet
as at March 31, 2025 and the Statement of Profit & Loss Account and the Cash Flow
Statement for the year ended on that date together with the reports of the Board of
Directors and the Auditors thereon.

To consider and it thought fit, to pass the following Resclution as an Ordinary Resolution:

a) "RESOLVED THAT the audited standalone financial statements of the Company including
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Profit & Loss Account and the Cash Flow
Statement for the year ended on March 31, 2025 notes fo financial statements, reports
of the Board and Auditors’ thereon be and are hereby received, considered and adopted.”

b) "RESOLVED THAT the audited consolidated financial statements of the Compahy
including the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Profit & Loss Account and the Cash
Flow Statement for the year ended on March 31, 2025, notes fo financial statements
along with Auditors' report thereon be and are hereby received, considered and adopted.”

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vineet Verma (DIN: 06362115) who retires by rotafion
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

To consider and it thought fit, to pass the following Resclution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of The Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutery
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Vineet Verma
(DIN: 06362115) who retires by rofafion and being eligible, offers himself for
re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire
by rotation.”
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As per the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (55-2} issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (ICST), the details of the directors seeking appointment or
re-appointment, is enclosed as an Annexure to this Notice.

Place: Bangalore
Date: April 18, 2025

Registered Office

29t & 30" Floor, World Trade Center
Brigade Gateway Campus,

26/1, br, Rajkumar Road,
Bangalore-560055

By order of the Board
For Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

Manaying Dipéctor
DIN: 02750342
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NOTES:

L

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY
TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED
NOT BE A MEMBER.

Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered Office of the
Company not less than forty eight hours before this Annual General Meeting.
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DETAILS OF DIRECTOR{S) SEEKING APPOINTMENT/ RE- APPOINTMENT

AT THE 9™H ANMUAL GENERAL MEETING

Date of Birth

September 25, 1959

Age (in yeors)

65

Date of first appointment an
the Board

August 24 2016

Brief Resume & Quualification
of the Directors

He holds @ bacheler's degree in science from the University of Calcutta, India,
He joined the Brigade group in 2006 as chief executive officer of Brigade
Hospitality Services Limited. He is the managing director of WTC Trades &
Projects Private Limited, which provides facility mahagement services.

He has completed the executive programme for strategic marketing for hotels
and restaurants from the Indien Scheol of Business. He was alse associated with
Bengal Ambuja Metro Development Limited o5 the chief executive officer.
Previously, he also served as the secretary and chief executive officer of the
Royal Caleutta Turf Club and has more than 3Q years of experience across the
fields of hospitality and retail business.

Infer-se relationship with any

There is no refative on the Board,

other Directors of the

Comparny

Directarships in other a)  SRP Prosperita Hotel Ventures Ltd
Companies b} Brigade Hospitality Services Ltd.

¢} Celebrations Private Limited

d) Augusta Club Private Limited

e) WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited

f)  Brigade Infrastructure & Power Pvi Ltd

g) Brigade (Gujarat) Projects Private Limited

h) Tandem Allied Services Private Limited

i) Brigade Centre of Excellence & Skills Foundotion

Committee positions held in
Board

a) Bri ude_Hos itality Services Liz_ni'rgc_l:

on’ held

Audit Committee

Nomination and Member
Remuneration Committee
Corporate Social Chairman

Responsibility Committee

b) _SRP Prosperita Hotel Ventures Limited:
tee:: |- Desigriation hele

Audit Commitiee Chairman

Nomination and Chairman

Remuneration Committes

BRIGADE
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¢) Brigade (Gujarat} Projects

Audit Committee

Chairman

Notination and
Remuneration Committee

Member

d) Tandem Allied Services Private Li_m_i'r_ed:

rion held

Corporate Social
Responsibility Commiftee

Chairman

e) WTC Trodes & Projects Private Limited:

¥

D

Member

Responsibility Committee

Audit Committee

Namination and Member
Remuneration Committee

Corporate Social Chairman

f} Brig

it mm

ade Hotel Ventures Limi

Committee of Directors

Audit Committea

Member

Stakeholder's

Relationship Committes

Chairman

-

No, of equity shares held in the
Compary including
shareholding as o beneficial
owher

50 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each which constitutes a negligible % of the
paid-up equity share capital of the Company. The beneficial interest is
with Brigade Enterprises Limited, the holding company.

Ne. of Board
attended

Meetings

11 ef 11

Terms and conditions of
appointment/ re-appointment

Re-appointment in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013,

Remuheration proposed to be
paid

Not Applicable

Remuneration last drawn

Not Applicable
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BRIGADE HOTEL VENTURES LIMITED
CIN: U74999KAZ016PLCO9HIBE
Regd. Off.: 29" & 30™ Floor, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus,
26/1, Dr. Rajkumar Road, Malleswaram -Rajajinagar, Bangalore 56Q 055

Ninth Annual General Meeting

ATTENDANCE SLIP
{To be handed over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall)

CLID/ Folio No. :
DPID. : No. of Shares held:

I/ We certify that I/ We am/ are a Registered Shareholder/Proxy for the Registered
Shareholder of the Company. I/ We hereby record my/ our presence at the Ninth Annual General
Meeting of the Company being held on Wednesday, 2™ July, 2025 at 11:00 am, at the Board
Room, 30™ Floor, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus, 26/1, Dr. Rajkumar Road,
Malleswaram-Rajajinagar, Bangalore - 560 055

Name of the Member/Proxy Signature of Member / Proxy
(in Block Letters )
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BRIGADE HOTEL VENTURES LIMITED
. CIN: U74999KA2016PLLOIESES
Regd. Off.: 29™ & 30™ Floor, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus,
26/1, Dr. Rajkumar Road, Malleswaram-Rajajinagar, Bangalore 560 055

_ FORM MGT- 11- PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rute 19(3} of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the member(s):

Registered address:

E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Client Td:

DP Id:

I/We, being the mémber(s) of ... Shares of Brigede Hotel Ventures Limited,
hereby appoint:

L

Name

Address

E-mail ID

Signature R RNORRROOIO | b i« 1) [11%e W 11311
Name

Address

E-mail TD

SIGature f e, OF ailing him
Name

Address

E-mail ID

Sighature



as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poil) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Ninth Annual
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General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Wednesday, 2™ July, 2025 at 11:00 a.m. af the
Board Room, 30™ Floor, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus, 26/1, Dr. Rajkumar Road,
Matleswaram-Rajajinagar, Bangalore - 560055 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such
resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution Resolutions Vote
Number
For | Against
Ordinary Business
1 Adoption of the Annual Accounts both standalone &
consolidated and Reports thereon for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025
2 Re-appointment of Mr. Vinget  Verma
(DIN: 06362118} as a Director iiable to retire by
rotation i
Signed this Affix
Revenue
Stamp

Signhature of Shareholder

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at
the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of

the Meeting.

Sighature of Proxy holder(s)
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Route Map to the Ninth Annual General Meeting
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BRIGADE HOTEL VENTURES LIMITED

Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U74999KA2016PLCOO5886
Regd. Off: 29" & 30™ Floors, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway
Campus, 26/1, Dr. Rajkumar Road, Malleswaram-Rajajinagar,
Bengaluru - 560 055.

11191080 4137 9200 &:investors@bhviin ¥ www.bhvlin
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HOTEL WEMTURES LIMITED

BOARD'S REPORT

Dear Members,

We have pleasure in presenting the Ninth Annual Report on the business and operations of the
Company together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended
March 31, 2025,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:
(Amount in Rupees Lakhs)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
Standalone | Standalone | Consolidated | Consolidated
Total Income 40579 34,609 47 068 40,485
Total Expenses 37,361 32,027 42 617 37277
Profit/{Loss) before
exceptional items and tax 3.188 2,582 4,451 3,208
Exceptional Ttems. 0 0 0 0
Profit/Loss before tax 3,188 2,682 4,451 3,208
Current Tax - - - -
 Deferred tax 1516 ¢ 722 2,085 94
Profit/{Loss) After tax 1,672 1,860 2,366 3,114
Other Comprehensive Income {35) 4 (34) 7 ]
Total Comprehensive 1 637 1,864 2 332 3 121
Income/Loss

FINANCIAL & OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW:

During the year under review, the Company on a standalone basis had clocked a total revenue of
Rs, 40,579 lakhs as against Rs. 34,609 lakhs in the previous year, an increase of 17%, The increase
in the revenue is due to the overall growth in the hospitality business due fo the incredse in
occupancy and the average room rates across hotels operated by the Company. Our portfolio’s
occupancy rate for the FY 2024-25 grew to 76% from 72% the previous year, RevPAR for our
portfolio saw a growth of 10% over the previous financial year. The consolidated revenue of the
Company stood at Rs. 47,068 Lakhs during the year 2024-25 as against 40,485 Lakhs during the
previous year,

The total comprehensive income on & standalone basis for the year ended March 31, 2025 stood
at Rs. 1,634 lakhs as compared to Rs. 1,864 Lakhs in the previous year ended March 31, 2024, The
shrink in profit is due to an increase in one-time expenses relating to the proposed initial offering
issue of the company, employee expense and the deferred tax charge. The total comprehensive
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income on a consolidated basis stood at Rs, 2,332 Lakhs as against Rs. 3,121 Lakhs during the
previous year.

Looking ahead, domestic business and leisure travellers remain the primary demand drivers for
the hotel industry. While international travel continues its steady recovery and contributes
significantly through Global Distribution Systems, the focus wiil remain on a¥tracting domestic
travellers through cempetitive pricing and tailored experiences.

Your Company aleng with its subsidiary has a total of 9 operating hotels focated in Bengaluru,
Mysuru, Chennai, Kochi and GIFT City and has a total of 1604 keys which are operational as on
March 31, 2025, The average occupancy during the year was 76%.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES:

The Company is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Brigade Enterprises Limited. SRP Prosperita Hotel
Ventures Limited is a subsidiary of the Company. There are no associate companies as on
March 31, 2025.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SUBSIDIARIES:

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year 2024-25 are prepared in
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) including Indian
Accounting Stendards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The audited
consolidated financial statements tegether with the Auditors' Report thereon form part of the
Annual Report,

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a statement containing the salient
features of the financial statements of the subsidiary company as required in Form AOC-1 is
attached as Annexure-1 to this Report,

Audited financial statements together with the related information and other reperts of the
subsidiary Company is available on the website of the Company at: https://bhvl.in/subsidiary-

financials/

TRANSFER TO RESERVES & DIVIDEND:

The Company has not transferred any amount to reserves or declared any dividend for the year
under review. ’
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DEPOSITS:

The Company has not accepted any Ideposifs in terms of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014, during the year and accordingly, no
amount of principal or interest was cutstanding as on the Balance Sheet date.

SHARE CAPITAL:

Pursuant to a resolution passed by our Board and Shareholders, each on May 10, 2024, the
authorised share capital of our Company was reclassified from Rs. 2.,900,000,000 divided into
9,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each and 28,100,000 0.01% OCRPS of Rs. 100 each to
Rs. 2,500,000 000 divided into 290,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each. Our Company had filed
Form SH-7 on May 10, 2024 with Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) for such reclassification
of the authorised share capital. With effect from May 10, 2024, pursuant o the option exercised
by BEL, the holder of the Optionally Convertible Redeemabie Preference Shares (OCRPS), and
approval of the Board of Directors of the Company, 28,043,000 OCRPS have been converted to
280 430,000 equity shares of the Company of Rs, 10 each af a ratio of 1:10 (i.e., 10 Equity Shares
issued for every 1 OCRPS held by BEL).

Further, pursuant to resclutions dated October 5. 2024 and October 14, 2024 passed by our
Board and Shareholders, respectively, our authorised share capital was increased from
Rs. 2,900,000,000 divided inte 290,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each to Rs. 4 500,000,000
divided into 450,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each.

Bue to technical issues involved in processing of SH-7 form for re-classification we made a
request To MCA Yo cancel the SH-7 form. Thereafter, the Board and Shareholders of our
Company, pursuant to resolutions, each dated January 21, 2025, have approved the increase in the
authorised share capital of our Company with retrospective effect from May 10, 2024 and the
requisite e-forms were filed with MCA. The Board and Shareholders of our Company, pursuant To
resolutions, each dated January 21, 2025, have further approved the cancellation of OCRPS from
the authorized share capital of the Company and the resulting decrease of the authorised share
capital of our Company from Rs, 5,710,000,000 divided into 290,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10
each and 28,100,000 0.01% OCRPS of Rs, 100 each to Rs. 2,900,000,000 divided into 250,000,000
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, with retrospective effect from May 10, 2024. Further, the Board
and Sharcholders of our Company, pursuant to their resolutions each dated January 21, 2025,
have ratified the increase in authorised share capital from Rs. 2,900,000,000 divided into
290,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each to Rs. 4, 500,000,000 divided into 450,000,000 Equity
Shares of Rs. 10 each, as approved by the Board and Shareholders on October 5, 2024 and
October 14, 2024, respectively.

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company as on 315" March, 2025 is Rs. 4,500,000,000 divided
into 450,000,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each,
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The issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company as on 315" March, 2025 is Rs.
2,81,43,00,000/- {Rupees Two Hundred and Eight One Crores Forty-Three Lakhs only} comprising
of 280,430,000 equity shares of the Company of Rs. 10 each.

During the year under review, the Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights
and sweat equity shares,
DEBENTURES:

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any Debentures. As on date, the
Company does not have any outstanding Debentures,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
As of March 31, 2025, the Board of the Company comprises of 7 Directars of which 1 is Executive

Director and & are Non-Executive Directors including 4 Independent Directors, The composition
of the Board of Directors is in due compliance of the Companies Act, 2013,

1 | Ms. Nirupa Shankar Managing Director

2 Mr. Amar Shivram Mysore Non-Executive Director

3 Mr. Vineet Verma Non-Executive Director

4 Mr. Anup Sheh Nen-Executive Independent Director
5. Mr. Bijou Kurien Non-Executive Independent Director
6 Ms. Jyoti Narang Non-Executive Tndependent Director
7 Mr. Nakui Anand Non-Executive Independent Director

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
CHANGE IN DIRECTORATE

During the year under review, Ms. Nirupa Shankar was appointed and designated as Managing
Director of the Company for a term of 5 years with effect from October 05, 2024,

Mr. Nakul Anand was appointed as Additional Director of the Company in the non-executive
independent capacity with effect from October 05, 2024. He was appointed as Non-Executive
Independent Director on the Board of the Company at the Extraordinary General Meeting held
oh October 14, 2024,
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RETIREMENT BY ROTATION AND SUBSEQUENT RE-APPOINTMENT

Tn accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and the provisions of Section
152(6)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Vineet Verma {(DIN: 06362115) Director of the
Company will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers
himself for reappointment.

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Independent Directors are not fiable to
retire by rotation.

The Notice convening the Ninth Annual General Meeting includes the proposals for the re-
appointment of the Director Brief resume of the Directors proposed to be re-appointed, nature
of their expertise in specific functional areas and names of the Companies in which they hold
directorship/ membership/chairmanship of the Board or Committees, as stipulated Secretarial
Standard 2 issued by the Institute of Companies Secretaries of India have been provided as an
annexure to the Notice convening the Nineth Annual Genera! Meeting.

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified under Section 164(2) of the Companies
Act, 2013, '

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, Ms. P Shivaleela Reddy has resigned from the position of Company
Secretary with effect from August 09, 2024 and Ms. Akanksha Bijawat, was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company with effect from October 01, 2024,

Mr. Rayan Aranha, Manager, resigned effective October 04, 2024,

Ms. Nirupa Shankar, Managing Director, Mr. Anand Natarajan, Chief Financial Officer and Ms,
Akanksha Bijawat, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, are the Key Managerial Personnel
of the Company in accordance with the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013,

REMUNERATION DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND
EMPLOYEES:

The Company has 1062 employees as on March 31, 2025. The details of employees who are in
receipt of remuneration exceeding the limits prescribed under Section 134 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 5{2) & 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 is appended as Annexure-2. In ferms of Section 136(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under, the Annual Report is being sent to the shareholders
and others entitled thereto excluding the aforesaid Annexure. Any sharehoider interested in
obtaining the same may write to the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer.
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BOARD MEETINGS:

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company met 11 {Eleven) times oh
the following dates:

Dates on which Board | Total Strength of the Board No of Directors Present
Meetings were Held

May 10, 2024 B {Five) 5 (Five)
May 10, 2024 6 (Six) 5 (Five)
May 21, 2024 6(Six) 6 (Six)
July 24, 2024 6(Six) 6 (5ix)
October 05, 2024 ' 6(5ix) 5 (Five)
October 19, 2024 7(Seven) 5 (Five)
October 24, 2024 7(Seven) 7 (Seven)
QOctober 28, 2024 7{Seven) 7 (Seven)
November 06, 2024 7{Seven) 7 (Seven)
January 21, 2025 7(Seven} 7(Seven)
January 28, 2025 7(Seven) 7 (Seven)

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETINGS AND THE EIGHTH ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING:

The Board of Directors of the Company have attended the Board Meetings, the Eighth Annual
General Meeting and Extra-ordinary General Meeting, the details of which are as follows:

Attendance in | Attendance in the Extraordinary
Board meetings | the Eight | General Meeting
Name of the attended in the | Annual General | May Aug | Oct | Qct | Jan
Directors financial  year | Meeting  held | 10, 30, 14, |21, |21,
-2024-25 on August OZ, | 2024 2024 | 2024 | 2024 | 2025
2024
Ms. Nirupa 10 (Ten) Yes Yes Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes
Shankar
Mr. Vineet Verma 11 (Eleven) Yes Yes Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes
Mr. Amar 11 {Eleven) Yes Yes Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes
Shivram Mysore '
Mr. Bijou Kurien 11 (Eleven) No Yes No No Neo Ne
Mr. Anup S Shah 9 (Nine) No Yes Ne | No { No | Neo
Ms, Jyofi 10 {Ten) No Yes No No No No
Narang™®
Mr. Nakul Anand™ 5 (Five} NA NA NA No No No

* Ms. Jyoti Narang and Mr. Naku! Anand were appointed as Independent Directors of the Company with
effect from May 10, 2024 and October 05, 2024 respectively.
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During the year 2024-25, the Audit Committee met 9 times. The dates on which the said meetings
were held are as foliows:

May 10, 2024
May 21, 2024
July 24, 2024
October 19, 2024

October 24, 2024

Cctober 28, 2024
Cctober 30, 2024

November 06, 2024

January 21, 2025

The Audit Committee was reconstituted in the Board Meeting held of October 05, 2024. The
composition of the Audit Committee and the details of meetings attended by its members are

given below:
Sl. | Name of the Directors Designation No. of Committee Meetings during
No. the year 2024-25
Held Attended
1 Mr. Bijou Kurien Chairman 9 (Nine) | 6 (Six)
2 Me. Anup Shah Member 9 (Nine) 5 (Five)
3 Ms, Jyoti Narang Member 9 (Nine) 6 (S5ix)
4 Mr. Nakul Anand Member 9 (Nine) 5 {Five)
5 Mr. Vineet Verma Member 9 (Nine) 9 (Nine)

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION (NRC) COMMITTEE:

During the year 2024-25, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 3 times. The dates

oh which the said meetings were held are as foliows:

May 10, 2024
July 24, 2024
October 05, 2024
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The Nomination ahd Remuneration Committee was reconstituted in the Board Meeting held on
October 05, 2024, The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the
details of meetings attended by its members are given below:

Mr. Anup Shah Chairman 3 NA
Mr, Bijou Kurien Member 3 NA
Mr. Nakul Anand Member 3 NA
Mr. Amar Mysore Member 3 3

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

STAKEHOLDER'S RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

No meetings of the Stakehelder's Relationship Committee were held during the financial year
2024-25,

The Stakeholder's Relationship Committee was constituted in the Board Meeting held on October
05, 2024. The details of composition of the Stakeholder's Relationship Committee is given below:

Mr. Vineet Verma Chairman
Ms. Nirupa Shankar Member
Mr. Anup Shah Member
Ms. Jyoti Narang Member

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:

No meetings of the Risk Management Committee were held during the fihancial year 2024-25.

The Risk Management Committee was constituted in the Board Meeting held on October 05, 2024,
The details of the composition of the Risk Management Committee is given below:
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Mr. Amar Mysore Chairman
Ms. Nirupa Shankar Member
Mr. Bijou Kurien Member
Mr. Jyoti Narang Member
Mr. Nakul Anand Member

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

No meetings of the Corporate Social Responsibility (C5R) Committee were held during the
financial year 2024-25,

The Corperate Social Responsibility Committee was constituted in the Board Meeting held on
October 05, 2024. The details of composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
is given below:

Ms. Nirupa Shankar Chairperson
Mr, Amar Mysore Member
Ms. Jyoti Narang Member
Mr. Nakul Anand Member

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.
COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS:

The Committee of Directors was constifuted on October 05, 2024. During the financial year
2024-25, the Committee of Directors met 2 times. The dates on which the said meetings were
keld are as follows:

October 30, 2024
February 11, 2025

The composition of the Committee of Directors and the details of meetings attended by its
members are given below:
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Ms. Nirupa Shankar Chairperson 2 1
Mr. Amar Mysore Member 2 2
Mr. Vineet Verma Member 2 2
Mr. Bijou Kurien Member 2 1

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The Company's Independent Directors have submitted requisite declarations confirming that they
continue to meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013,

POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION:

Pursuant to Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Board has formulated the criteria for identification and Board nomination of
the suitable candidates as well as the policy on remuneration for Key Managerial Personnel and

other senior employees of the Company.

The Directors of the Company are appointed by the Members at Annual General Meetings in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder,

The details of remuneration to the directors during the financial year 2024-25 are as follows:

si. Name of the besignation Sitting Fees | Commission Total (Rs.
Neo. | Director (Rs. in Payable (Rs. [ in Lakhs)
Lakhs) in Lakhs)
1. | Nirupa Shankar Managing Director - - -
Amar Mysore Non-Executive - - -
Director
3. | Vineet Verma Noh-Executive - - -
Director
4. | Bijou Kurien Nen-Executive 16.00 4.00 20.00
Independent Director
5. | Anup Shah Nen-Executive 12.75 7.25 20,00
Independent Director




5
e

Bt

a,

BRIGADE

Buliting Pesltive Experences

sl Name of the Designation Sitting Fees | Commission Total (Rs.
No. | Director (Rs. in Payable (Rs. | in Lakhs)
Lakhs) in Lakhs)
6. | Jyoti Narang Non-Executive 14.75 5.25 20.00
| _Independent Director
7. | Nakul Anand Non-Executive 8.00 12.00 20.00
| Independent Director

The Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
Personnel is available on the website of the Company af https://bhvl.in/wp-
content/uploads/2024/10/remuneration-policy-21102024 pdf

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
The Board of Directors hereby confirm that:

a) inthe preparation of the annual financia} statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reascnable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of
the Company for that period;

¢) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities:

d} the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going cencern basis:

¢) there are proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were
in place and were adequate and operating effectively.

ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a copy of the Annual Return of the
Company for the period March 31, 2025 is uploaded on the company’s website under the foilowing
link: httpsi//bhvl.in/annual-return/
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STATUTORY AUDITORS:

The Members of the Company at the Sixth Annual General Meeting held on July 28, 2022 approved
the re-appointment of M/s. S. R, Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants {Registration
No. 101049W/E300004), Statutory Auditors of the Company for a further period of Syearsie.,
from the conclusion of the Sixth Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of Eleventh Annual
General Meeting of the Company, in terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

The related party transactions undertaken during the financicl year 2024-25 as detailed in the
notes to accounts of the financial Statements which have been carried out at arms’ length basis
and in the normal course of business.

BOARD EVALUATION:

Annual evaluation of the performance of the Board, its committees and of individual Directors of
the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 has been made as per the provisions of Companies
Act, 2013.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company
have appointed M/s. ASR & Co., Company Secretaries (Firm Reg No.: P2015KR061600) to conduct
the Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2024-25 and their Report on Company's Secretarial
Audit is appended as Annexure-3 to this Report,

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Secretarial Audit Report which require any
explanation from the Board of Directers,

MATERTAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS:

During the review period, the Company filed its Draft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP) on October
30, 2024, for an Initial Public Offering (IPO) of equity shares having a face vaiue of %10 each,
aggregating up to £9,000.00 million. The net proceeds from the proposed issue are intended to
be utilized for the Repayment of outstanding borrowings availed by the Company and its material
subsidiary, SRP Prosperita Hotel Ventures Limited, Purchase of an undivided share of land from
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our Promoter, BEL and Acquisition and other general corporate purposes upto 35% of the gross
proceeds of the Issue.

SIGNIFICANT OR MATERIAL ORDERS:

During the financial year under review, no significant and material Orders were passed by the
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company's operations
in the future.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS:

The Company has edequate internal financial control systems in place with reference to the
financial statements.

During the year under review, these controls were evaluated, and no significant weakness was
identified either in the design or operation of the confrols.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board of Directors have been enfrusted with responsibility for establishing policies to
monitor and evaluate risk management systems of the Company. The Board reviews the same in
the Board meetings regularly and the Internal Audit exercise aids the Board in this evaluation
exercise,

The business risks identified are reviewed and a detailed action pian to mitigate identified risks
is drawn up and its implementation monitored. The key risks and mitigation actions will also be
placed before the Board of Directors of the Company on a periodic basis.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The provisions reiating to Corporate Social Responsibility are applicable to the Company as on
March 31, 2025,

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

The Company is engaged in the service sector and has limited energy consumption requirements.
However, the company is focusing on optimization of its energy consumption levels.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: NIl
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€. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

During the year under review, the Company has tatal foreign earnings of Rs, 1,28 55,39,073/- and
foreign outgoings of Rs. 17,10,57,774/-.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL} ACT, 2013:

As a part of the policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment in the organization, the Company has
framed a policy and constituted a "Internal Committee" for prevention and redressal of complaints
on sexual harassment of women af workplace in accordance with the Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition, and Redressel) Act, 2013 and relevant rules thereunder.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the
year:

* No. of complaints received: Nil
» No. of complaints disposed off: Nil

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/VIGIL MECHANISM

As a part of Whistle Blower Policy, the Holding Company i.e. Brigade Enterprises Limifed has
framed a policy for the Brigade Group as part of vigil mechanism for observing the conduct of
Directors and employees and report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud
or violation of the Company's Code of conduct to the Ethics Committee members or the Chairman
of the Audit Committee of Holding Company. This mechanism also provides for adequate
safeguards against victimization who avail the mechanism.

OTHER DISCLOSURES:

o Company has complied with all applicable mandatory Secretarial Standards issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

« Pursuant to Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not required to
maintain any cost records,

o No fraud was reported by the Auditors as specified under Section 143 of the Companies
Act 2013 for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

« There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company.

+ There are no differential voting rights shares issued by the Company.
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e There were no sweat equity shares issued by the Company.

¢ There are no Corporate Insolvency proceedings initiated against the company under
Tnsolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC).

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation to all the stakeholders for their
continued suppert and patronage.

By Order of the Board
For Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

Vineet VA

Director
DIN: 02750342 DIN: 06362115

Place: Bangalore
Date: April 18, 2025
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(Pursuant to first provise to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of
Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/
associate companies/ joint ventures

Part "A": Subsidigries

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars SRP Prosperita Hotel Ventures Ltd
Reporting period 2024-25
Reporting currency INR (Lakhs)
 Share capital 3,634 ]
Other Equity 2,513
Total Assets 13,134
Total Liabilities 13,134
Investments 6
Turnover 6473
Profit/Loss before Taxation 1,263
Provision fer Taxation 569
Profit/Loss after Taxation 694
Other Comprehensive Income 1
Total Comprehensive Income 695
Proposed Dividend -
% of Sharehelding 50.01%

Notes:

a} Name of subsidiary which is yet Yo commence the operations: NA,
b) Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: NA

Place: Bangalore
Date: Aprii 18, 2025

DIN: 02750342

By Order of the Board
otel Ventures Limited

in;;t/@é*ma
irector

DIN: 06362115
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Form No. MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report
(For the financial Year ended 31-03-2025)
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

29" and 30™ Floor, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus,
26/1, Dr. Rajkumar Road, Malleswaram-Rajajinagar,
Bangalore-560055

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Brigade Hotel Ventures
Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon, the Secretarial Audit was conducted
under the provisions of Section 204 of the Act, Specifically, as they are required for public
companies with a paid-up share capital of 50 crore or more, or a turnover of 250 crore or
more and additionally, any company with outstanding loans or borrowings from banks or
public financial institutions exceeding ¥100 crore, as the company is an unlisted company.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on 31-03-2025, complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed, and other
records maintained by Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited (“The Company”) for the financial

year ended on 31-03-2025 according to the provisions of:

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder.

ASR & CO
133/2, 4" Floor, Janardhan Towers, Residency Road, Bangalore - 560025
www.asrandco.com | E-Mail: info@asrandco.com | Ph: 9845083234



Il. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made
thereunder.

Ill. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made
thereunder. The company has not received any FDI (Foreign Investment).

V. The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) is not applicable to the company as the company has not
listed any of its securities on any Stock Exchange but is Public limited company.

VI. As represented by the management, during the period the Company has complied with
the following Acts & regulations including Licenses & making of payment within the
time specified: - (We have conducted Test Checks)

1. Karnataka Shops and Commercial Establishment Act ,1961;

2 Karnataka Tax on Profession, Trade, and Callings Act, 1976;

3 Employees' Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;

4, Employees State Insurance Act 1948;

5. Gratuity Act 1972;

6. Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;

1. Equal Remuneration Act, 1976;

8. Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Act; 1986;

9. Contract Labour Regulation Act, 1970;

10. Minimum Wages Act, 1948;

il 8 Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006 and Food Safety and Standards Rules, 2011;

12, Food Safety and Standards (Packing & Labelling) Regulations, 2011.

13, Pollution Control Acts

14. Licenses under the Indian Performing Rights Society Limited (Under section 33 of
the Copyrights Act 1957)

15. FL 3 Liquor License (State Excise)

16. Manifest for Hazardous Waste

17. Hotel Classification under Ministry of Tourism

18. Fire & Emergency Service

19. BBMP Licenses (Karnataka)
20. Electrical Inspectorate




It is further reported that company has obtained in principle approval for the draft red
herring prospectus from the Securities and Exchange Board of India during the year.

We have placed our reliance on the Management comments, Internal Audit Report &
Statutory Audit Report for the compliances of the following: -

Income Tax Act;

Goods and Service Tax Act;

PF Payments;

Cash Balances;

Financial Transactions;

Stock Verification;

Human Resources & Pay Roll;

Statutory compliances

TDS, PF, PT, ESIC, Gratuity & GST compliance w.r.t. charge/deduction, remittance
and filing of returns

10. Review of departmental notice receipt & monitoring process
11. Licenses:

FSSAI

Liquor

Trade License

5-star classification

o B I i o

As informed by the management regards the compliance with the provisions of Section
128(5) read with rule 11(g) of the Companies Act, 2013 the company has defined process to
take daily back up for books of accounts maintained in electronic mode. The company uses
accounting software for maintenance of books of accounts which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) and the same is operational.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. (SS1
&SS2)

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc., mentioned above.




However, in one instance where the authorised share capital relating to Optionally
Convertible Preference Shares (OCRPS) of the company was reclassified into Equity shares of
the company and accordingly OCRPS was converted in to equity shares and necessary e-forms
i.e. SH-7 for reclassification and PAS-3 for allotment of the equity shares was filed with Ministry
of Affairs (MCA). Since the e-form was under process for a long time as this required a policy
decision by the MCA, the company had voluntarily requested for cancellation of these e-forms
and increased the authorised equity share capital and filed e-forms SH-7 as well as PAS-3
for conversion of OCRPS in to equity shares with the original date of exercise of option for
conversion. All the e-forms have been duly processed and approved by MCA.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agendaitems before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through, while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that:

There are systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines. However, the current compliance tracker is not very

comprehensive.

We further report that:

During the period under review the following changes took place regarding appointment &
cessation of Directors, Managers & KMP.




Sl. No. | Name Particulars Effective Date

i Jyoti Narang Appointed as Additional Director 10-05-2024
(Independent)

Rayan Aranha Resigned as Manager 04-10-2024

Nirupa Shankar Appointment as Managing Director 05-10-2024

Nakul Anand Appointed as Additional Director 05-10-2024
(Independent)

5. Shivaleela Reddy Resigned as Company Secretary 09-08-2024

6. Akanksha Bijawat Appointed as Company Secretary 01-10-2024

We further verify/certify that none of the directors on the board of the company have been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by
the SEBI/MCA or any such statutory authority.

Place: Bangalore For ASR & Co,
Date: 18-04-2025 Company Secretaries

L




ANNEXURE
To

The Members
Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Bengaluru

Auditor’s responsibility

Based on audit, our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance with the
applicable laws and maintenance of records by the Company. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the auditing standards CSAS 1 to CSAS 4 (“CSAS”) prescribed by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”). These standards require that the auditor complies
with statutory and requlatory requirements and plans and performs the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records.

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating controls,
there is an unavoidable risk that some misstatements or material non-compliances may not
be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the
CSAS. Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company and for which we relied on the report of statutory auditor.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, requlations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the company.




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP L

Chartered Accountants No. 24, Vittal Mallya Road
Bengaluru - 560 001, India

Tel : +91 80 6648 9000
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Report on the Audit of the standalone financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows and the Standalone
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone
financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given fo us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs). as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
*Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 27(b)(iii) of the standalone financial statements, in connection with an ongoing litigation
relating to assessment of property tax. Pending ultimate outcome of the matter, no adjustments have been made in the
accompanying standalone financial statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Directors’ report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. [f, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

5.R. Bathboi & Assoriates LLP. a Lwmnited Liamiity Partpership with LLP ldentity Mo AAB-4255
Regd. Office : 22, Camas Straet, Block '8, 3rd Floar, Kolkata-TO0 016
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Responsibility of Management for the standalone financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management,

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. [f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
I. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of

India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 17 a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

b

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, to the extent applicable, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company, in electronic mode
on servers physically located in India so far as it appears from our examination of those books. except for the
matters stated in note 36 to the standalone financial statements that the backup of the books of account and
other books and papers maintained in electronic mode with respect to individual hotel units of the Company
has not been maintained on servers physically located in India on daily basis and for the matters stated in the
paragraph (j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

(¢) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including the statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows and Standalone Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) The matter described in Emphasis of Matter paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on
the functioning of the Company;

(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(g) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated
in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph (j)(vi) below on reporting under
Rule 11(g);

(h) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

(i) The Company has not paid any managerial remuneration during the year and hence, provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025;

(j) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone
financial statements — Refer Note 27(b) to the standalone financial statements;
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ii.

iii.

vi.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any provision for material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company;

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note
38(v) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediaries shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note
38(vi) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a)
and (b) contain any material misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same
has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the accounting software except
that, audit trail feature is not enabled for certain changes made, if any, using certain access rights and in
respect of individual hotel units of the Company wherein its accounting software did not have the audit trail
feature enabled throughout the year, as described in note 36 to the standalone financial statements. Further,
during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with in respect of the accounting software to the extent audit trail feature is enabled. Additionally, the audit
trail in respect of the relevant prior year has not been preserved by the company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention, as stated in note 36 to the standalone financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accounta

[CAI Firm Registrafon Number: 101049 W/E300004

per Sudhir f

Partner
Members

UDIN: 25213157BMNZDO2326

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 18, 2025
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of
our report of even date on the standalone financial statements of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited (“the Company”)

Report on the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account and records
examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i} (a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(a)(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets,

(b) All property, plantand equipment have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there
is a regular program of verification which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c) The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in note 3.1 to the standalone financial statements
included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the Company based on the confirmations
received from the lenders.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or intangible
assets during the year ended March 31,2023,

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under
the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder as disclosed in the note
38(i) to the standalone financial statements.

(ii) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year. [n our
opinion, the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. Discrepancies of
10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed on such physical verification.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from a bank
during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined by us
in the normal course of audit of the standalone financial statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by the
Company with such bank are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

(iii) (a) During the year, the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee or
provided security to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{b) During the year, the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided security and granted
loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties,
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(¢) The Company has granted loans to a company where the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of
interest has been stipulated and the repayment or receipts are regular.

(d) There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than ninety days.

(e) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships
or any other parties which was fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or extended or fresh loans
granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.
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()

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii) (a)

(b)

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Loans, investments, guarantees and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are applicable have been complied with by the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to
be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the
extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3{vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the
information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues which have not been deposited
on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the statute Nature Amount Amount Period to | Forum where the dispute is
ofthe | demanded | paid under | which the pending
dues (Rs. in protest amount
lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs) relates
Karnataka Municipal Property 9,222 4,591 2011-12 to | High Court of Karnataka
Corporations Act, 1976 Tax 2021-22

read with Bruhat Bangalore
Mahanagara Palike
Property Tax Rules, 2009

Central Goods and Services | Goods 600 49

Tax Act, 2017; Karnataka | and 2020-21 | Tax (Appeals), Bengaluru

2018-19 to | Commissioner of Central

Goods and Services Tax Services 27 Nil

2019-20 to | Assistant Commissioner of

Act, 2017 and Integrated Tax 2020-21 | Central Tax (Appeals),
Goods and Services Tax Bengaluru
Act, 2017
Central Goods and Services | Goods 100 6 2020-21 | Deputy Commissioner of
Tax Act, 2017; Gujarat and State  Tax  (Appeals),
Goods and Services Tax Services Gandhinagar
Act, 2017 and Integrated Tax 1301 63 2019-20 | Deputy Commissioner of
Goods and Services Tax State  Tax (Appeals),
Act, 2017 Gandhinagar
Central Goods and Services | Goods 5 Nil 2018-19 | Assistant  Commissioner
Tax Act, 2017; Kerala and Central Tax and Central
Goods and Services Tax Services Excise, Kakkanad
Act, 2017 and Integrated Tax
Goods and Services Tax
Act, 2017
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income 1 Nil 2019-20 | Principal Commissioner of
Tax Income Tax
235 Nil 2021-22 | National Faceless Appeal

Centre (NFAC), Delhi
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(viii)  The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account,
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year as disclosed in note 38(vii) of
the standalone financial statements. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest as
applicable thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

(¢) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-term
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary. Hence, the
requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public offer
(including debt instruments) and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially or
optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.
(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by
secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)

Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year.

(xii) (a) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(¢) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)  Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under audit have
been considered by us.
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(xv)

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its
directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to the

Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. Accordingly, the

requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India.

Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx) (a)

(b)

of the Order is not applicable to the Company

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to report on
Clause 3{xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 37 to the standalone financial statements, the ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions and considering the Company’s
current liabilities exceeds the current assets by Rs. 10,011 lakhs, the Company has obtained the letter of financial
support from its holding company, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities, existing at the date of balance sheet, as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date.

We, further state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company and our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to spending on Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xx)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to spending on Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xx)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountapts
ICAI Firm Registrafion Number: 101049W/E300004

Partner

Membership Number: 213157

UDIN: 25213157BMNZDO2826

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 18, 2025
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of
our report of even date on the standalone financial statements of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Brigade Hotel
Ventures Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Contrals

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance note™). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards
on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
with reference to standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference
to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

per Sudhir
Partner
Membershi

Number: 213157

UDIN: 25213157BMNZDO2826

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 18, 2025



Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

CIN: UT4999KA2016PLCO95986

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(AN amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 63,947 55.551
Capital work in progress 4 2.019 7,168
Intangible assets 32 177 82
Financial assets
Investments 5 5.867 9,086
Other non-current financial assets (] 34 616
Deferred tax assets (net) 7.1 3,39 4900
Other non-current assets 8 2,590 68
Current tax assets (net) 73 959 445
Sub total 82,296 77916
Current assets
Inventories 9 613 532
Financial assets
Trade receivables 10 1,849 1.654
Cash and cash equivalents .1 1,062 675
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 11.2 1.159 1,228
Other eurrent financial assets 6 966 274
Other current assets 8 2,503 1,536
Sub total 8,152 5,899
Total assets 90,448 83,815
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12,1 28,143 100
Instruments entirely equity in nature 12.2 - 28.043
Other equity 3 {15,328) (16,965)
Total equity 12,815 11,178
Liahilities
Mon-current liabilitics
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 14 44 603 48 998
Lease liabilities 28 13,897 11,834
Other non-current financial liabilities 15 - 185
Other non-current liabilities 17 862 878
Non-current provisions 16 108 76
Sub total 59,470 61,971
Current liabilities
Financial labilities
Borrowings 14 1,112 3,697
Lease liabilities 28 56 -
Trade payables I8
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 207 92
- Total outstanding dues of creditors ofher than micro enterprises and small 3,231 2.523
enlerprises
Other current financial liabilities 15 2,100 2.640
Other current liabilities 17 1,266 1.572
Current provisions 16 191 142
Sub tetal 18,163 10,666
Total equity and liabilities 90,448 83,815
Summary of material accounting policies 21

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountant:

1C Al Firm registratigh number: 101049W/E300004

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

CIN: U74999K

mm@sm
¥ tVer

Director

2

DIN: 06362115

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 18, 2025

Ananda Natarajan Akanksh
Chief Financial Officer Company




Brigade Hotel YVentures Limited

CIN: UT4999KA2016PLCO95986

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Income
Revenue from operations 19 40,353 34,301
Other income 20 226 308
Totalincome (i) 40,579 34,609
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 21 3,977 3,580
Employee benefits expense 22 7,752 6,794
Depreciation and amortization expenses 23 4,275 3,604
Finance costs 24 6,571 6,041
Other expenses 25 14 816 12,008
Total expenses (i) 37,391 32,027
Profit before tax (iii) = (i) - (ii) 3,188 2,582
Tax expense 72
Current tax - -
Deferred tax charge/(credit) 1,516 722
Total tax expense (iv) 5 1,516 722
Profit for the year (v) = (iii) - (iv) 1,672 1,860
Other comprehensive income
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Re-measurement gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans 47) 5

Income tax effect - credit/(charge) 12 (n
Other comprehensive income ("OCT') (vi) (35) 4
Total comprehensive income for the year (vii} = (v) + (vi) 1,637 1.864
|comprising profit and OCI for the year| ' 2
Earnings per share ("EPS'") 26
[nominal value of share Rs.10 (March 31, 2024: Rs.10)]

Basic & Diluted EPS (Rs) 0.58 .66
Summary of material accounting policies 2.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
ICAI Firm registration pmber: 101049 W/E300004 CIN: U74999KA2016P1 5986

Vinect Vepina
Directol
DIN: 06362115

Place: Bengaluru ' Ananda Natarajan
Date: April 18, 2025 Chief Financial Officer
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Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

CIN: UT4999KA2016PLC0Y5986

Standalone Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash (lows:
Depreciation and amortization expense 23
Reversal of impairment allowance for bad and doubtful debts 20
Liability no longer required written back 20
Government Grants - Capital subsidy 20
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 25
Interest expense 24
Interest income 20

Operating profit before working capital changes
Movements in working capital ;
(Decrease) / increase in trade payables
(Drecrease) / increase in other liabilities
{Decrease) / increase in provisions
(Increase) / decrease in inventories
{Increase) / decrease in trade receivable
{Increase) / decrease in other assets
Cash generated from operations
Direct taxes (paid)/refunds, net
Net cash flow (used in)/from operating activities (A)
Cash Mows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including capital work in progress) 3,4
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Investment in bank deposits
Redemption of bank deposits
Proceeds from redemption of non-convertible debentures
Interest received
Net cash flow (used in) investing activities (B)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Interest paid
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities
Net eash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts
- in deposit accounts with original maturity less than 3 months
Cash and cash equivalent as per balance sheet 1.1
Less: Bank overdrafi 14
Cash and cash equivalent as per statement of cash flows

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
3,188 2,582
4,275 3,604

{15) (59)
(25) -
(16) (186)
8 174
6,571 6,041
(139) {197)
13,847 12,129
848 (430
(255) 168
34 58
(80} (143)
(179) 89
(1,571) 1,551
12,644 13,422
(514) (111
12,130 13,311
(9,365) (5,362)
- 5
(612) (684)
867 1,609
258 -
100 166
(8,752) (ﬂ
1,832 3,997
(3,676) (5,514)
(3,778) (3.957)
(68) (1,079)
(689) {602)
(6,379) (7,155)
(3,001) 1,890
6875 {1,215)
(2.326) 675
2] 23
937 652
104 -
1,062 675
(3,388) -
{2,326) 675

Note: Refer note 11.1 for changes in liabilities arising from financing activities and note 28 for non-cash investing activities pertaining to right-of-use

assets,

Summary of material accounting policies 21
The accompanying nofes are an inlegral part of the standalone financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached

For S.R. Batliboi & Assgtiates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registratign number: 101049 W/E300004

Partner
Mermber

Place; Bengaluru
Date: April 18, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

CRN: UT4999KA2016PL

DIN: 02 ?0342

Ananda Natarajan
Chief Financial Officer

5986

Dy

Vineel Verm
Director
DIN: 06362115




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

CIN: U74999KA2016PLC0O95986

Standalone Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

No. of shares

Amount

(refer note 12.1) (in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Equity shares of Rs.10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

As at April 01, 2023 10 100

Changes during the year - -

As at March 31, 2024 10 100

As at April 01, 2024 10 100

Changes during the year 2.804 28,043

As at March 31, 2025 2,814 28,143
B. Instruments entirely equity in nature No. of shares Amount
(refer note 12.2) {in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each ("OCRPS')

As at April 01, 2023 280 28,043

Changes during the year - -

As at March 31, 2024 280 28,043

As at April 01, 2024 280 28,043

Changes during the year (280) (28.043)

As at March 31, 2025 - =
C. Other equity

{refer note 13)

Equity component of Retained Tatal
Compound Financial earnings
Instruments

As at April 01, 2023 6,750 (25,579) (18,829)
Profit for the year - 1.860 1.860
Other comprehensive income - 4 4
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,864 1,864
As at March 31, 2024 6,750 {23,715) (16,965)
As at April 01, 2024 6,750 (23,715) (16,965)
Profit for the year 1.672 1,672
Other comprehensive income . (35) (35)
Total comprehensive income for the year # 1,637 1,637
As at March 31, 2025 6,750 (22,078) (15,328)

Summary of material accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For S.R. Batliboi & Ass
Chartered Accountants
IC Al Firm registratios

per Sudhir Jain
Partner

Members

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 18, 2025

2.1

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

CIN: U74999KA2016PL

Ananda Natarajan
Chief Financial Officer

3986

Director
DIN: 06362115

Company(¥ecretary




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

L. Corporate information

Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited (the *Company”) (CIN; U74999KA2016PLC095986) was incorporated on August 24, 2016. The registered office of
the Company is located at 29th Floor & 30th floors, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus, 26/1, Dr Rajkumar Road. Malleswaram-
Rajajinagar, Bangalore 560 055. The Company is carrying on the hospitality business including running and managing hotels,

The standalone financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Company on April
18. 2025,

% Basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013 {as amended) and presentation requirements of Division 11 of Schedule [11 to the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS
compliant Schedule 111), as applicable to the standalone financial statements.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments) which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs). All the values are rounded off to the nearest lakhs. except when otherwise
indicated.

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(a) Use of estimates

The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting
period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities. The effect of change inan
accounting estimate is recognized prospectively.

(b) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance shect based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purposes of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setile a liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for the purposes of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has
evaluated and considered its operating cycle as one year and accordingly has reclassified its assets and liabilities into current and non-current.

Assets and liabilities, other than those discussed above, are classified as current to the extent they are expected to be realized/ are contractually repayable
within one year from the Balance sheet date and as non-current, in other cases.

Deferred tax assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current assets/ liabilities.
(c) Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of aceumulated impairment loss, if any. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization eriteria are met and
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at
the purchase price.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately.
This applies mainly to components for machinery. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed. its cost is recognized in the carrying
amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in
profit or loss as incurred.
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Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property. plant and equipment is added 1o its book value only if'it increases the future benefits from its
previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing property. plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and
maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts. are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are
incurred.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition of property. plant and equipment which take substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under
other non-current assets.

An item of property. plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the Property, plant and equipment is de-recognized.
Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalized. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is capitalized to the extent
to which the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental thereto, Other indirect expenditure {including borrowing costs) incurred
during the construction period which is neither related to the construction activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the statement of profit and loss.
Caosts of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work- in- progress.

(d) Depreciation on property. plant and equipment

Depreciation is calculated on written down value basis using the following useful lives estimated by the management, which are equal to those
prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013:

Category of Asset Useful lives (in years)
Buildings 60
Plant and machinery 15
Electrical installation and equipment 10
Furniture and fixtures
. Used in hotels, restaurants, etc. 8
e Others 10

Computer hardware

e End user devices

. Server and network equipment
Office equipment
Motor vehicles

oofun | on e

For certain hotel-specific assets, depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at. based on the useful lives estimated by the
management based on technical assessment as below:

Category of Asset Useful lives Schedule 11 lives
(in years) (in years)

Buildings 25-30 60
Plant and machinery 15 15
Electrical installation and equipment 10 10
Furniture and fixtures

e« Used in hotels, restaurants, eic. 8

. Others 10 10

Computer hardware

. End user devices

s Server and network equipment
Office equipment
Motor vehicles

o2 || oy wa
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Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:
Leasehold land — 25 to 35 years

The management considers residual value at 3% as prescribed under Schedule 1T of Companies Act, 2013,

The management believes that the above estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely
to be used,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

(e) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition. intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Intangible assets comprising of computer software are amortized on a written down value basis over a period of six years. which is estimated by the
management to be the useful life of the asset. In case of certain hotels, the intangible assets comprising of computer software are amortized on a straight-
line basis over a period of six years as estimated by the management.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of amortization of intangible asscts are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively.
it appropriate,

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when asset is derecognized.

() Impairment

A. Financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and measures the required
expected credit losses through a loss allowance. The Company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment losses on trade receivables. The Company follows the simplified approach for recognition of impairment allowance on trade receivables
wherein, it recognises impairment allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all
contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to
the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

B. Non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
assel does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, Where the carrying amount of an asset
or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount, In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if’ available. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and less. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the
asset over its remaining uselul life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impainment losses no longer exist
or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount. nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

(g) Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Where the Company is lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

The Company at the inception of the lease contract recognizes a Right-of-Use {RoU) asset at cost (included in Property, Plant and Equipment) and
corresponding lease liability, except for leases with term of less than twelve months (short term) and low-value assets. The cost of the right-of-use
assets comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability. any lease payments made at or before the inception date of the lease plus
any initial direct costs, less any lease incentives received. Subsequently. the right of-use assets are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. if any. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the
shorter of lease term or usetul life of right-of-use assets.

For lease liabilities at inception, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate is readily determined, if’ that rate is not readily determined. the
lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate, The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company
and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

The Company recognizes the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use assets. Where the carrying amount
of the right-of-use assets is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognizes any
remaining amount of the re-measurement in the statement of profit and loss.
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The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption 1o its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applics the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that
are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
aver the lease term.

Where the Company 15 lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset is classified as operating
leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are eamed.

{h) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized/inventorised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to statement
of profit and loss.

(1) Inventaries

Inventories comprising of food, beverages and other items are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, Cost of inventories is determined on a
weighted average basis,

Met realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

[§3) Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is measured based on the transaction
price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other eredits, if any. as specified in the contract with the customer. The Company presents
revenue from contracts with customers net of indirect taxes in its statement of profit and loss.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction
price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant
financing components, noncash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer, if any.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Revenue from hospitality services
Revenue from hospitality operations comprise revenue from room charges, food & beverage sales, facility usage charges and allied services, including
telecommunication, laundry, etc. Revenue is recognized as and when the services are rendered and is disclosed net of allowances.

Contract balances

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring
goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the eamed
consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before
payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services 1o a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made. or the payment is due {whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Company performs under the contract.

Income from lease rentals
Refer accounting policy under “Leases™ above.

Interest income

Interest income, including income arising from other financial instruments measured at amortized cost. is recognized using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, where appropriate, 1o the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividend fncome
Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established, which is generally when shareholders approve the
dividend.

8]
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(k) Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items ineluded in the standalone financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

i} Initial recognition - Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded at the functional currency spot rate at the date the transaction first qualifies
for recognition.

ii) Conversion - Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date, Non-monetary iterns, which
are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign curreney, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of initial transaction. Non-
monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate
at the date when such value was determined.

iii) Exchange differences - The Company accounts for exchange differences arising on translation/ settlement of foreign currency monetary items as
income or as expense in the period in which they arise. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively)

(h Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefits in the form of state governed Employee Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance and Employee Pension Fund Schemes are
defined contribution schemes (collectively the ‘Schemes®). The Company has no ebligation, other than the contribution payable to the Schemes. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to the Schemes as expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. The contribution paid in
excess of amount due is recognized as an asset and the contribution due in excess of amount paid is recognized as a liability.

Gratuity, which is a defined benefit plan, is acerued based on an independent actuarial valuation, which is done based on project unit credit method as
at the balance sheet date. The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and
lasses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) are recognized in other comprehensive income. Remeasurements, comprising
of actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability, are recognised immediately in the balance
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the standalone statement of profit and loss:
P Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
P Interest expense

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures
the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the
reporting date.

The Company treats aceumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement
purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit eredit method, made at the
end of each financial year. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss. The Company presents the accumulated
leave liability as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months
after the reporting date.

{m) Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

i.  Current income tax

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based
on the taxable income for that period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.

ii.  Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.
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The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be wiilized. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised fo the extent that it has become probable that future tasable profits will allow the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability
is settled. based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right 10 set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously. in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

{n) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If
the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific
to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost,

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the oceurrence or non-
accurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because
it is not probable that an autflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where
there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recagnize a contingent liability but discloses
it in the standalone financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benelits is remote,

(o) Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of
the related asset.

(p) Financial Instruments

A. Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are initially
measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financ ial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement. financial assets are classified in four categories;

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

YVYVYVYY

i, Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) (debt instruments) )

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Debt instruments included within the FVTOC] category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. For debt instruments,
at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the profit or loss
and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCL
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value changes recognised in OC is reclassified from the equity to profit or loss.

ii. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Company had not irrevocably
elected to classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the
right of payment has been established.
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iii. Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

Upon imitial recognition, the Company can elect to elassify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at fair value through
OCI when they meet the definition of equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification
15 determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL,

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recyeled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit
and loss when the right of payment has been established. except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost
of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to
impairment assessment.

iv. Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
A “financial asset’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met;

a)  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
b)  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

Afier initial measurement. such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss, The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss.
This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Investment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary is carried at cost. Impairment recognized, if any, is reduced from the carrying value.

De-recognition of financial asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of'a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed

from the balance sheet) when:

a)  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired. or

b}  The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

B. Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified. at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as payables.
as appropriate. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafis.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

#  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
»  Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

i. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial Habilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilitics held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

ii.  Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest (‘EIR”) method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in
the statement of profit and loss.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using EIR method. For trade and other payables maturing
within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

De-recognition of financial liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original lability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

C. Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

A

45: & ASs

‘-._"'r c:"

5 X

L‘.)\BEHQEHUTU [

':D %]
, fay




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. Afier initial recognition, no reclassification is made for
financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.

D, Offsetting of financial instruments

Finaneial assets and finaneial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis. 1o realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

E. Fair value of linancial instruments

The Company measures its financial instruments such as derivative instruments, ete at fair value at each balance sheet date, Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement 1s based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the lability takes place either:

» Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

-

¥ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or lability

The fair value of an asset or a liability 1s measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or hiability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

» Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

» Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

#» Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the standalone financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as & whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and
risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

(q) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are
entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding. without a
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share. the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(r) Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase. to be cash equivalents.

For the purpose of the standalone statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

(s) Cash dividend to equity holders of the Company

The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is authorized and the distribution
is no longer at the discretion of the Company, Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and
interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company's Board of Directors.

2.2 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company s standalone financial statements requires management to make judgments. estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures. and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected
in future periods.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management makes judgment, estimates and assumptions which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the standalone financial statements. The key judgment, estimates and assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carryin




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below, The Company based its judgments and assumptions and estimates
on parameters available when the standalone financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or cireumstances arising that are heyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions used by management are as below:
Defined benefit plans — Gratuity

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount
rate. future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obli gation
is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate, In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India. the management
considers the interest rates of government bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to
change only at interval in response to demographic changes, Future salary increases are based on expected future inflation rates and expected salary
increase thereon.

Useful life and residual value of property. plant and equipment and intangible assels

The useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are determined based on evaluation made by the management
of the expected usage of the asset, the physical wear and tear and technical or commercial obsolescence of the asset. Due to the judgments involved in
such estimates the useful life and residual value are sensitive to the actual usage in future period.

Evaluation of control, joint control or significant influence by the Company over its investee entity for disclosure

Judgment is involved in determining whether the Company has control over an investee entity by assessing the Company 's exposure/rights to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and its ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee entity. The Company considers
all facts and circumstances when assessing whether it controls an investee entity and reassess whether it controls an investee entity if facts and
circumnstances indicate that there are changes to one or more elements of control. In assessing whether the Company has joint control over an investee
the Company assesses whether decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control, Further, in assessing
whether Company has significant influence aver an investee, the Company assesses whether it has the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not in control or joint control of those policics,

Measurement of financial instruments at amoriized cost

Financial instrument are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest (*EIR") method. The computation of amortized cost is
sensitive to the inputs to EIR including effective rate of interest. contractual cash flows and the expected life of the financial instrument. Changes in
assumptions about these inputs could affect the reported value of financial instruments.

2.3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 01,2024
The Company has not early adopted any standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

(i) Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts

The Ministry of corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts, vide notification dated August 12, 2024, under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024. which is effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2024,

Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement,
presentation and disclosure. Ind AS 117 replaces Ind AS 104 Insurance Contracts. Ind AS 117 applies to all types of insurance contracts, regardless of
the type of entities that issue them as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation features; a few scope
exceptions will apply. Ind AS 117 is based on a general model, supplemented by:

« A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach)

= A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

The application of Ind AS 117 had no impact on the Company’s standalone financial statements as the Company has not entered any contracts in the
nature of insurance contracts covered under Ind AS 117,

(ii) Amendment to Ind AS 116 Leases — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The MCA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which amend Ind AS 116, Leases, with respect to
Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback.

The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure
the seller-lessce does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains,

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 01,2024 and must be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback
transactions entered into after the date of initial application of Ind AS 116,

The amendment does not have a material impact on the Company’s standalone financial statements.
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Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

3.1 Property, plant and equipment

Leaschold Office
Freehold land Biildiigs Plant & Electrical Office equipment Computer Motor Furniture Total
land {(ROU machinery installation equipment {ROU hardware vehicles & fixtures
Assets) ® Assets)®
Cost
At April 01, 2023 3,042 5,729 52,788 8,120 3,790 6,205 - 1,246 162 14,662 95,744
Additions - 6,000 303 76 24 190 - 34 - 126 6,753
Disposals/Adjustments - - (355) (37 - (110) - (%) - (66) (377)
At March 31, 2024 342 11,729 52,736 8,159 3,814 6,285 - 1,271 162 14,722 101,920
Additions 75 1,790 6,411 908 948 817 232 204 - 1,246 12,631
Disposals/Adjustments - - - - - (231) - - - - (231)
At March 31, 2025 3,117 13,519 59.147 9,067 4,762 6,871 232 1,475 162 15,968 114,320
Depreciation
At April 01, 2023 - 631 15,583 4,882 2,663 5,581 - 1,093 115 12,655 43,203
Additions - 181 1,754 449 259 279 - 108 11 523 3.564
Disposals - - {191) (32) - {105) - (8) - (62) (398)
At March 31, 2024 - 812 17,146 5,299 2,922 5,755 - 1,193 126 13,116 46,369
Additions - 422 1,863 467 340 354 60 76 9 636 4,227
Disposals - - - - - (2323) - - - - (223)
At March 31, 2025 - 1,234 19,009 5,766 3.262 5,886 60 1,269 135 13.752 50,373
Net book value
At March 31, 2024 3,042 10,917 35,590 2,860 892 530 - 78 36 1,606 55,551
At March 31, 2025 3,117 12,285 40,138 3,301 1,500 985 172 206 27 2,216 63,947

Capitalised borrowing costs
Refer note 4 for details of capitalised borrowing costs.

Assets under construction

Refer note 4 for details of capital work in progress.

Assets pledged
Refer note 14 for details of assets pledged as security for borrowings.

Assets leased

*Represents Right-of-use assets. Also refer note 28 for details.

Title deeds of immovable properties

The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)
included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the Company.

The property, plant and equipment of the Company include land, buildings and other assets with a gross carrying value of Rs. 35,168 lakhs, which were acquired by the
Company from its Holding Company - Brigade Enterprises Limited pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement between the Company and its Holding Company and their
respective shareholders and creditors in terms of the provisions of Sections 230 to 233 of the Companies Act, 2013 to transfer the hotel business undertakings, including
the aforesaid land, buildings and other assets, to the Company (hereinafier referred to as “the Scheme™). The Scheme was approved by National Company Law Tribunal
{"NCLT") on March 13, 2018 with an appointed date of October 01, 2016 and was filed with the Registrar of Companies, Karnataka on April 01, 2018,
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

3.2 Intangible Asscts

Computer i
Software Lol
Cost
At April 01, 2023 754 754
Additions - -
Disposals - -
At March 31, 2024 754 754
Additions 143 143
Disposals - -
At March 31, 2025 897 897
Amortization
At April 01, 2023 632 632
Charge for the year 40 40
Disposals - -
At March 31,2024 672 672
Charge for the year 48 48
Disposals - -
At March 31, 2025 720 720
Net book value
At March 31, 2024 82 82
At March 31, 2025 177 177
4 Capital work in progress
Property Plant
and Equipment Tl
At April 01, 2023 2,935 2,935
Additions during the year 4,619 4,619
Less: Capitalised during the year (386) (386)
At March 31, 2024 7,168 7,168
Additions during the year 5.460 5,460
Less: Capitalised during the year {10609 {10,609)
At March 31, 2025 2,019 2,019
Capital work in progress ageing schedule
Amount in Capital work in progress for the period of Total
<1 Year 1-2 vears 2-3 vears >3 years
At March 31, 2025
Projects in progress 1,548 220 15 236 2,019
Projects temporarily suspended = - - - -
Total 1,548 220 15 236 2,019
At March 31,2024
Projects in progress 4,448 403 T 2,240 7.168
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 4,448 403 77 2,240 7,168
Notes:

1, The amount of borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended March 31, 2025 was Rs. 237 lakhs (March 31, 2024 Rs. 165 lakhs).
and the capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation was 9-10% p.a.

2, Refer note 14 for details of assets pledged as security for borrowings
3. There are no project whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan
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Notes to Standalone financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
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5 Non-Current Investments

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

A. Investments carried at cost

Investment inequity instruments of substdiaries

2.02 lakhs (March 31, 2024: 2.02 lakhs) Equity shares of Rs.10/- cach fully paid up in SRP Prosperita Hotel Ventures 8375 8375

Limited ('PHVL")

Less: Impairment loss (3.000) (3,000}
5,373 5,375

Investment in preference shares of subsidiaries
32,44 lakhs (March 31, 2024: 32.44 lakhs) 0.01% A Series Compulsory Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 100/ each 3,244 3,244
fully paid up in PHVL

Investment in other equity of subsidiaries
PHVL (Dther equity upen subscription of 0.01% Non-convertible Debentures in PHVL) 155 155

Total Investments carried at cost (A) 8,774 8,774

B. Investments at amortised cost

Tnvesiment in debentures of subsidiaries

1.00 lakhs (March 31, 2024: 3.58 lakhs) 0.01% Non- Convertible Debentures of Rs, 100/~ each fully paid up in PHVL 93 312
Total Investments at amortised cost (B) 93 312
Total Investments (A+B) 8,867 9,086

a) Aggregate amount of quoted investments

b) Aggregate amount of other investments 8.867 9,086
¢) Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments 3,000 3,000
6 Other financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Non-current Current
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024  March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Margin money deposits with banks* 208 232 - -
Deposits with original and remaining maturity of more than 12 months 93 253 - -
Security deposit 40 131 736 42
Interest accrued - - 70 70
Unbilled revenue - - 160 162
341 616 966 274

*Margin money deposits have been made towards borrowings, letter of credit and bank guarantee facilities availed by the Company from banks. Refer note 14
for details of deposits pledged as security for borrowings.
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T Income tax

=1
‘

Deferred tax

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Deferved tax liahifities

Property, plant and equipement - Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/amortization 2,165 2,334
charged for the financial reporting (including impact of lease accounting)

Right of use assets 3,135 3,179
Impact relating to compound financial instruments 1,011 1,613
Gross deferred tax liabilities 6,311 7,126

Deferred tax assels

Unused 1ax losses 5,683 7,989
Lease liabilities 3,512 3,761
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current year and allowed for 124 276
tax purposes in a subsequent year on payment basis

Impact of accounting for financial instruments at amortized cost 388 -
Gross deferred tax assets 9,707 12,026
Net deferred tax assets 3,396 4,900
Notes:

The Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 (‘the Ordinance”) provides an option to domestic companies to pay income-tax at a lower rate of 25.17%
instead of the normal rate of 29.12% (as applicable to the Company), if it opts for not availing of certain specified exemptions or incentives. The Company has
made an assessment of the impact of the Ordinance and during the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has decided to opt for the lower fax rate of 25,17%.
Consequently, deferred tax charge for year ended March 31, 2025 is higher by Rs. 664 lakhs,

The unused tax losses towards business loss [Deferred tax assets of Rs. 452 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 1,890 lakhs)] can be carried forward for a maximum
period of eight financial years immediately succeeding the financial year in which the loss was first computed and would expire, if not utilised, starting from
financial vear 2029-2030, Further, the unused tax losses towards unabsorbed depreciation [Deferred tax assets of Rs. 5,231 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 6,099
lakhs}] can be carried forward for an indefinite period.

Reconciliation of deferred tax asset (net)

March 31,2025 March 31,2024

Opening balance 4,900 5,623

Deferred tax recognised in statement of profit or loss (1.516) (722)

Deferred 1ax recognised in OCl {12) (1)

Closing halance of deferred tax assets 3372 4,900
: Recognised in i : i

Movement in deferred tax assets (net) for Balance as at Recognised in Recognised in Balance as at

the year ended March 31, 2025 April 01, 2024 ’“““:‘:i:; oo oci otherequity  March 31, 2025

(a) Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets- 2,334 (169) - - 2,165
Impact of difference between tax depreciation and

depreciation/amortization charged for the financial reporting

Right of use assets 3,179 (44) - - 3,135

Impact relating to compound financial instruments 1,613 (602) - - 1011
7,126 (815) - - 6,311

(b) Deferred tax assets

Unused tax losses 7.989 (2,306) - - 5,683

Lease liabilities 3,761 (249) - - 3,512

Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss 276 (140) (12) - 124

in the current vear and allowed for tax purposes in a subsequent
year on payment basis

Impact of accounting for financial instruments at amortized cost - 388 388

12,026 (2,307) (12) 8 9,707
Net deferred tax assets (b) - (a) 4,900 (1,492) (12) - 3,396
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Recognised in

Movement in deferved tax assets (net) for Balance as at stiternent aroft Recognised in Recognised in Balance as at
the vear ended March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023 nrl@;} ocCl other equity March 31, 2024
(a) Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets- 2,186 148 - - 2,334
Impact of difference between tax depreciation and
depreciation/amartization charged for the financial reporting
Right of use assets 1,485 1,694 - - 3,179
Impact relating to compound f{inancial instruments 1,984 (371) - - 1,613
5,655 1,471 - - 7126

(b) Deferred tax assets
Unused tax losses 5,852 (B63) & = 7,989
Lease liabilities 1,966 1,795 - - 3,761
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss 460 (183) (1) - 276
in the current vear and allowed for tax purposes in a subsequent
year on payment basis

11,278 749 n - 12,026
Net deferred tax assets (b) - (a) 5,623 (722) (1) = 4,900

7.2 Tax expense
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are:

March 31,2025  March 31, 2024

Profit or Loss section
Current tax

Current income tax charge - -
Deferred tax credit

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 1,516 722
Income tax expense/(credit) reported in the statement of profit and loss 1,516 722
OCI Scetion
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year

Income tax relating 1o re-measurement (gains) losses on defined benefit plans (12) 1
Income tax expense/(credit) reported in OCI (12) 1

¢} Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Accounting profit/(loss) before income tax 3,188 1,582
Statutory income tax rate 25.17% 29.12%
Tax on accounting profit at statutory income tax rate 802 752
Tax effect due to change in rate 665 -
Tax effect of other items, net 49 (30)
Tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 1,516 722

7.3 Current tax assets (net)

March 31,2025  March 31,2024

Current tax assets (net) 959 445
8 Other assets
(Unsecured)
Non-current Current

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024  March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Considered good

Balances with statutory / government authorities - - 6035 850
Advance to suppliers - - 322 241
Capital advances 2,590 68 - -
Prepaid expenses - - 1,546 415
Advance to Employees - - 30 30
2,590 68 2,503 1,536
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Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

9 Inventories
{valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Food and beverages
Stores and spares

For details of inventories pledged as security for borrowings refer note 14.

10 Trade receivables
(unsecured)

Trade receivables - considered good
Receivables from related parties (refer note 29)
Receivables from others parties

Trade receivables - credit impaired

Total trade receivables

Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Total trade receivables

Note: Refer note 14 for details of trade receivables pledged as security for borrowings.

a. Details of provision for impairment is as below:

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

565 473
48 59
613 532
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
23 48
1,826 1,606
55 70
1,904 1,724
(55) (70)
1,849 1.654

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year 70 129

Add: Provision made during the year - .

Less: reversal upon realisation during the year (15) (39)

Balance at the end of the year 55 70
b. Trade receivables ageing schedule:
Particulars OQutstanding for the following periods from due date of payment

< 6 months 6 months- 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 Years Total
1 year

March 31, 2025
Undisputed, considered good 1,618 7 - - 1,625
Undisputed, credit impaired 5 7 13 15 = 40
Disputed, considered good - - - - 224 224
Disputed, credit impaired - - - - 15 15
Tatal 1,623 14 13 15 239 1,904
March 31, 2024
Undisputed, considered good 1,406 24 - - - 1,430
Undisputed, credit impaired - 8 43 4 - 55
Disputed, considered good - & - 224 224
Disputed, credit impaired - - - 15 15
Total 1,406 32 43 4 239 1,724
Notes:

1, Trade receivable are non interest bearing and are due from the date of transactions.
2. The Company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment losses on trade receivables. The Company follows
the simplified approach for recognition of impairment allowance on trade receivables. The application of the simplified approach does not require the Company
1o track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. ECL impairment loss allowance (or
reversal) recognised during the year is recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected under the head “other expenses/other

income’ in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

3. Trade receivable include receivable due from directors and other related parties

Particulars

March 31,2025

March 31, 2024

WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited ['WTC']
Brigade Hospitality Services Limited [BHSL']

Brigade Innovations LLP ['BILLP']

Brigade Propertics Private Limited['BPPL]

Brigade Gujarat Projects Private Limited [BGPPL']
Brigade Flexible Office Spaces Private Limited [BFOS]
Mysore Holdings Private Limited [MHPL']

Brigade Enterprises Limited [BEL']

SRP Prosperita Hotel Ventures Limited ['PHVL]
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Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

11.1 Cash and cash equivalents

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Cash on hand 21 23
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts 937 652
- in deposit accounts with original maturity less than 3 months 104 Fi
1,062 675
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:
Non-current b Cur‘:l.;:ts Interest accrued
Particulars portion of e B and not due on Total
borrowings g borrowings
8 current portion) 8
Balance as at April 01, 2023 43,918 10,858 - 54,776
Cash inflows 3,997 - - 3,997
Cash outflows (5,514) - . (5,514)
Acerual of finance cost (other than interest on lease liability) - & 5,278 5,278
Interest paid (other than interest on lease liability) - - (3,957 (3,957
Acerual of interest on loans from related parties 1,321 - (1,321) -
Change in bank overdraft (forming part of cash and cash equivalents) * (1,885) = (1.885)
Others* 5,276 (5,276) - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 48,998 3,697 - 52,695
Cash inflows 1,832 - - 1,832
Cash outllows (3,676) - - (3.676)
Acerual of finance cost (other than interest on lease lability) - - 5,254 5,254
Interest paid (other than interest on lease liability) - - (3,778) (3,778)
Accrual of interest on loans from related parties 1476 - (1,476 -
Change in bank overdraft (forming part of cash and cash equivalents) - 3,388 - 3.388
Others* (4,027) 4027 - 5
Balance as at March 31, 2025 44,603 11,112 - 55,715
* Others indicate the effect of movement between current and non-current borrowings basis the balance repayment period.
11,2 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Non-current Current
March 31, 2025  March 31,2024  March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balances with banks:
Margin money deposits 208 232 = i
Deposits with original and remaining maturity of more than 12 months 93 253 - -
Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but not more than 12
months - - 1,159 1,228
301 485 1,159 1,228
Less: Disclosed under non-current financial assets (refer note 6) {301) (485) - "
- - 1,159 1,228
Note: Deposits earned interest based on the bank deposit rates.
Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost March 31,2025  March 31,2024
Investments (note 5) 93 312
Other financial assets (note 6) 1,307 890
Trade receivables (note 10) 1,849 1,654
Cash and cash equivalents (note 11.1} 1,062 673
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (note 11.2) 1,159 1,228
5,470 4,759
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12.1  Eguity share capital

March 31, 2025
No. in lakhs Rs.

March 31, 2024
No. in lakhs Rs.

Authorised share capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 each:
Balance at the beginning of the year 90 900 90 900

Changes during the year 4,410 44,100 - -
Balance at the end of the year 4,500 45,000 90 900
Issued, subscribed and fully paid- up share capital March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Nao. in lakhs Rs. No. in lakhs Rs.

Equity shares of Rs.10 each:

Balance at the beginning of the year 10 100 10 100
Changes during the year 2,804 28,043 - -
Balance at the end of the year 2.814 28,143 10 106

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share, Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote per share. The
Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of directors is subject 1o the approval of the sharcholders
in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

Tn event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of
all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of équity shares held by the sharcholders.

(a) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates

Brigade Enterprises Limited, the holding company

2,814 lakhs (March 31, 2024 - 10 lakhs) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each

(b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid
Brigade Enterprises Limited, the holding company

(c) Shares held by promoters
As at March 31, 2025

March 31, 2025

Mareh 31,2024

28,143 100

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

No. in lakhs % holding

No. in lakhs % holding

2814

100%

10 100%

Promoter Name No. of shares at the

Change during the  No. of shares at the % of Total Shares

% change during

beginning of the year year: end of the year the year
(in lakhs) (inlakbs} {in lakhs)
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid
Brigade Enterprises Limited, the holding 10 2,804 2814 100.00% 28043%

company

As at March 31, 2024

No. of shares at the
beginning of the year
(in lakhs)

Promoter Name

Change during the
year
{in lakhs)

end of the year
(in lakhs)

No. of shares at the % of Total Shares

% change during
the year

Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid
Brigade Enterprises Limited, the holding 10
company

10

100.00% -

d) For details of shares reserved for issue under options, refer note 12.2




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
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12.2  Instruments entirely equity in nature

Authorised share capital March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
No. in lakhs Rs. No. in lakhs Rs.

Optionally Convertible Redecmable Preference Shares of
Rs.100 each ('"OCRPS'):

Balance at the beginning ol the year 281 28,100 281 28,100
Changes during the year (281) (28,100) -
Balance at the end of the year - - 281 28,100
Issued, subscribed and fully paid- up share capital March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

No. in lakhs Rs. No. in lakhs Rs.
OCRPS of Rs.100 each:
Balance at the beginning of the year 280 28043 280 28,043
Changes during the year (280) (28,043) - -
Balance at the end of the year - - 280 28,043

Terms of conversion/ redemption of OCRPS

OCRPS has been issued carrying a coupon of 0.01% (point zero one per cent) per annum calculated on the face value of such OCRPS. The holder of
OCRPS may at any time prior to the expiry of 20 (twenty) years exercise the option to convert the OCRPS to equity shares. Each OCRPS shall be
convertible into 10 (ten) equity shares or lesser number based on the consent of the holder. The holder of OCRPS shall be entitled to voting rights as per
the Companies Act, 2013,

The holder has confirmed compulsory conversion of the OCRPS into equity shares in the ratio of 1:10 and accordingly OCRPS has been recorded and
disclosed as “Instruments entirely equity in nature”,

With effect from May 10, 2024, pursuant to the option exercised by the holder of the OCRPS and approval of the Board of Directors and the
shareholders of the Company, 2,80,43,000 OCRPS have been converted to 28,04,30,000 equity shares of the Company of Rs, 10/- each at a ratio of 1:10
{i.e., 10 Equity Shares issued for every 1 OCRPS held by the holder of the OCRPS).

(a) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Brigade Enterprises Limited, the holding company
Nil (March 31, 2024 - 280,43 000) OCRPS of Rs.100 each - 28,043

(b) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
No. in lakhs % holding No, in lakhs % holding
OCRPS of Rs. 100 each :
Brigade Enterprises Limited, the holding company E 100% 280 100%
{c) Shares held by promoters
As at March 31, 2025
Promoter Name No. of shares at the Change during the No. of shares at the % of Total Shares % change during
beginning of the year year end of the year the year
{in lakhs) (in lakhs)
OCRPS of Rs. 100 each :
Brigade Enterprises Limited, the holding 280 (280) b 0.00% -100%
company
As at March 31, 2024
Promoter Name No. of shares at the Change during the No. of shares at the % of Total Shares % change during
beginning of the year vear end of the year the year
(in lakhs) (in lakhs)

OCRPS of Rs. 100 each :
Brigade Enterprises Limited, the holding 280 E 280 100.00% =
company
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13 Other equity

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Equity Compenent of Compound Financial Instruments

Balance at the beginning of the vear 6,750 6,750
Changes during the year - -
Balance at end of the vear (A) 6,750 6,750

Equity component of compound financial instruments being deemed capital contribution (i.e. interest-free related party loans) represents the residual
amount after deducting from the fair value of the instrument as a whole the amount separately determined for the liability component and tax effect
thereon.

Retained earnings / (deficit)

Balance at the beginning of the year {23,715) (25.579)
Profit for the year 1,672 1,860
Other comprehensive income for the year (35) +
Balance at the end of the year (B) (22,078) (23,715)
Total other equity (A+B) (15,328) (16,965)

Retained earnings are the profits/(loss) that the Company has carned/incurred till date. less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other
distributions paid to shareholders. It also includes re-measurement loss / (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to
statement of profit and loss,
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Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Allamounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

14

15

Borrowings
 Eiffestioe Maturity o rch 31,2025 March 31, 2024
interest rate period
Non-current borrowings
Term loan from banks (secured) 8-10% Upto 2033 34,558 36,701
Loans from related parties {unsecured; refer note 29) Note (ii) Note (i1} 10,045 12,297
44,603 48,998
Current borrowings
Lo repayable on demand
Bank overdraft (Secured) B-10% On demand 3,388 -
Current maturities of non-current borrowings - term loans from banks (Secured) 8-10% Upto 2033 3,996 3,697
Current maturities of non-current borrowings - Loans from related parties (unsecured; refer note 29) 3,728 -
Total Current borrowings 11,112 3,697

Notes:

(i) Term loan from banks are secured by way of first mortgage of hotel project properties, assignment of certain current assets and future receivables. The loans
carries floating interest rate in the range of 8-10% and are repayable over period of 60-153 monthly instalments of Rs,322-Rs.959 lakhs.

(ii) Loan from related partics are unsecured and carries interest of 12% and are repayable from 2025, On July 1, 2020, the Company and its Holding Company
entered into an agreement for interest-free unsecured loan of upto Rs.20,000 lakhs and repayable in quarterly instalments of Rs.1,000 lakhs each from June 2025

“to March 2030. The existing loan payable of Rs.11,274 lakhs as on June 30, 2020 (Principal - Rs.9,881 lakhs and Interest payable - Rs.1,393 lakhs) was converted

into interest-free loan as part of the aforesaid agreement. The Company has drawn loan of Rs.5,016 lakhs during the period July 27, 2020 to March 31, 2021 and
Rs. 1500 lakhs during the period November 29, 2022 to March 31, 2023, The Company has accounted the aforesaid loan, being interest-free in nature, as
compound financial instruments in accordance with Ind AS 32 with effective interest rate of 12%.

(iii) Bank overdrafis are secured by way of mortgage of a hotel project property, assignment of certain current assets and future receivables.

{iv) The quarterly returns / statements filed by the Company with banks under the borrowings arrangements are in agreement with the books of accounts of the
Compary. '

{v) With regard to the borrowings from banks, the Company has utilised the loans solely for the purposes for which they were taken.

(vi) No funds on short-term basis have been used for long term purposes by the Company.

(vii) The Company has satisfied all debt covenants as per the terms of borrowings.

Other financial liabilities

Non-Current Current
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Lease deposits - 185 192 -
Payable towards purchase of property, plant and equipment - - 1,206 1,983
Employee benefits payable - - 471 423
Interest free deposits from customers - 5 231 234

- 185 2,100 2,640
Provisions Non-Current Current

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024  March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 32) 108 76 46 39
Provision for leave encashment - = 145 103

108 76 191 142
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Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

17 Other liabilities Non-Current Current
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024  March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advance from customers = - 587 478
Deferred government grants* 862 878 16 16
Dreferred lease income . - 153 154
Statutory dues payable - = 510 924
862 878 1,266 1,572

* The Company has received grants in the nature of capital subsidy, interest subsidy and electricity duty subsidy of Rs. 1,056 lakhs under the Tourism Policy for
the State of Gujarat (2015-2020) from the government of Gujarat for the purpose of construction of a hotel property in GIFT city, Gujarat.

The capital subsidy is towards capital investment made by the Company in the hotel property. Accordingly, amount of capital subsidy received is treated as a
deferred government grant and is recognised as income in the statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset,

The interest subsidy and electicity duty subsidy are towards the costs incurred by the Company towards construction of the hotel property and the same has been
recognised as income in the statement of profit and loss to the extent of the corresponding expenses incurred by the Company.

18  Trade payables

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Trade payables
- Total owtstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer note 35) 207 92
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
- Payable to related parties (refer note 29) 318 152
- Payable to other parties 2,913 2,371
3,438 2,615

Trade pavables ageing schedule:

Particulars Unbilled and Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
not due Tl
<6 Months i ?i;:;l:s 1-2 Years 2-3 Years =3 Years

March 31, 2025
MSME . 207 - - - - 207
Others 1,890 1,036 300 - 5 - 3,231
Disputed dues -MSME -

Disputed dues - Others -
Total 1,890 1,243 300 - 5 - 3,438

March 31, 2024
MSME . 92 - - - % 92

Others 1,401 1,082 1 ] g 25 1,513
Disputed dues -MSME - -

Disputed dues - Others - - - B 2 . 5
Total 1,401 1,174 1 6 § 25 2,615

Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Mon-current borrowings (note 14} 44,603 48,998
Current borrowings (note 14) 11,112 3,697
Other financial liabilities (note 15) 2,100 2,825
Lease liabilities (note 28) 13,897 11,834
Trade payables (note 18) 3,438 2615

75,150 49,969
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19

19.1

19.2

20

21

Revenue from operations

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Revenue from contracts with customers

- Revenue from hospitality services 39,773 33,804
Income from leasing 580 457
40,353 34,301

Disaggregated revenue information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers by timing of transfer of goods or services:

Revenue from contracts with customers March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from hospitality services - Recognised over time 39,773 33,804

Contraet balances

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Trade receivables 1,849 1,654
Unbilled revenue 160 162
2,009 1.816

Advance from customers 587 478
587 478

Trade receivable are due from the date of transactions.

Unbilled revenue pertains to transactions where performance obligation has been satisfied and contractual invoices have not been raised.

Contract liabilities includes advance from customers and deferred revenue representing transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance
obligations. The outstanding balance has decreased primarily on account of recognition of revenue in current year.

Revenue recognised during the year that was included in the contract liabilities 478 482
balance at the beginning of the year:

Other income

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost:

Bank deposits 97 140
Loans to related parties 37 34
Others 5 23
Government grants 16 16

Liability no longer required written back 25 -
Reversal of impairment allowance for bad and doubtful debts 15 39
Miscellaneous income 31 36
226 308

Cuost of materials consumed

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Inventory at the beginning of the year 532 389

Add: Purchases during the year 4,058 3,723
4,590 4,112

Less: Inventory at the end of the year (613) (532)
3,977 3,580

Sh

]
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22

23

24

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus (refer note 32)
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (refer note 3.1)
Amortization of intangible assets (refer note 3.2)

Finance costs

Interest expense on financial liabilities at amortised cost
on bank borrowings
on related party borrowings (refer note 29)
on lease liabilities

Other borrowing costs

Other expenses

Power and fuel
Rent (refer note 28)
Repairs & maintenance
Buildings
Plant & machinery
Others
Sub-contracting expenses
Consumable costs
Insurance
Rales and taxes
Payment to auditor (refer note below)
Property taxes
Advertising and sales promotion
Agency commission
Security charges
Training and recruitment expenses
Legal and professional charges
Printing and stationery expenses
Travelling & conveyance
Communication expenses
Directors sitting fees
Exchange difference (net)
Loss from Sale of PPE
Miscellaneous expenses

Payment to auditors (excluding goods and service tax):
As auditor:  Audit fees
Out of pocket expenses

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
6,623 5772
403 355
726 ab7
7,752 6,794

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
4,227 3,564
48 40
4,275 3,604

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
3,430 3,697
1,476 1,321
1,317 763
348 280
6,571 6,041

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
2440 2,353
968 707
380 369
361 407
318 330
1,642 893
1,332 1,148
164 212
699 422
95 62
544 404
762 560
1,538 1,163
19 12
100 74
2,243 1,807
128 120
673 489
193 162

52 -

46 15
8 174
111 115
14,816 12,008

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
89 59
3
95 62

Note: The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to spending on Corporate Social Responsibility is not applicable to the

Company.
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26

27

Earnings per share ("EPS')

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss atiributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the vear plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity
shares into equity shares,

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computation:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Profit attributable to equity shareholders 1,637 1,364
Effect of dilution L =
Profit attributable to equity sharcholders adjusted for the effeet of dilution 1,637 1,864
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (No.in lakhs) 2,814 2,814
[includes Nil (March 31, 2024: 2804 lakhs) equity shares to be issued on conversion of OCRPS being a

mandaiorily convertible instrument, Also refer note 12.2]

Effect of dilution - =
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 2,814 2,814

Note: The impact of OCRPS, being a mandatorily convertible instrument, has not been considered in the computation of diluted EPS as the same has
already been included in the computation of basic EPS.

Commitments and contingencies

a. Capital commitment
The estimated amount of contracts (net of capital advance) remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for is Rs. 18,948 lakhs (March
31, 2024: Rs. 2,298 lakhs).

b. Contingent liabilitics

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(i) Bank guarantee 221 358
(ii) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in the nature of:

-Income Tax demands 236 235
-Goods and Service Tax demands 2033 700

(iii) Property tax demand under litigation

The Company has been discharging property tax in respect of its hotel properties, In this regard, the Company has received a demand notice from the
municipal authority assessing the property tax for certain hotel property for the period from financial year 2011-12 to financial year 2021-22 resulting
in demand of Rs.9,222 lakhs including interest and penalty thereon and the Company has subsequently paid Rs.4,093 lakhs under protest and an
additional amount of Rs.510 lakhs to be paid under protest, which are provided for. During the year ended March 31, 2025, aforesaid demand was
tevised by the municipal authority to Rs. 2,874 lakhs (net of payment under protest already provided for) for the financial year 2011-12 to financial
vear 2023-24 under One time settlement Scheme by a competent authority.,

The Company has litigated the aforesaid matter, which is pending adjudication. The Company is reasonably confident of a favourable outcome in
respect of the aforesaid matter based on the management’s evaluation and the legal opinion obtained by the management. Pending ultimate outcome
of the matter, ne adjustments have been made in the accompanying standalone financial statements.

{iv) The Code on Secial Security, 2020 (*Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received
Presidential assent in September 2020, The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. Certain sections of the Code came into effect on 3 May
2023. However, the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued, Based on a preliminary assessment, the Company believes the impact of the
change will not be significant.
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Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
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28  Leases

A. Company as Lessee during the year

The Company has taken land parcels on lease for operation/construction of hotel units with a lease period of 25-35 years with certain escalation and
extension clauses. The Company s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's title to the leased assets,

The Company also has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Company applies the 'short-term lease’ recognition exemptions for

these leases.

Set out below are the carrying amount of right-of-use assets recognised and
movements during the year:

Balanee as at April 01, 2023

Additions during the year

Depreciation during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2024

Additions during the year

a) Amount of lease liabilities recognised

b} Difference between the lease deposit and present value of lease deposit
Depreciation during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2025

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:
Balance as at April 01, 2023

Additions during the year

Accretion of interest

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities
Balance as at March 31, 2024

Additions during the year

Accretion of interest

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities
Balance as at March 31, 2025

Non-current lease liabilites
Current lease liabilities
Total

Right of use assets
{Leaschold land)

Right of use assets
{Office Equipment)

5,008
6,000
(181)

10,917

1,327
463
(422)

232

(60)

12,285

172

Lease liabilities
6,752

6,000

763

(1.079)

(602)

11,834

1,550
1,317
(68)

(689)

13,953

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 12%. The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Mote 31.

Statement of profit and loss

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses under rent)
Total amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Statement of cash flows
Cash outflow for leases - towards principal

Cash outflow for leases - towards interest

E. Company as lessor during the year

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
13,897 11,834
56 i
13,953 11,834
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
482 181
1,317 763
968 707
2,767 1,651
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
68 1,079
689 602

The Company has entered into cancellable operating leases consisting of certain retail and banquet spaces in the hotels on short term basis with

renewal clauses. The Company is also required to maintain the property over the lease term.

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Lease rentals recognised as an income in the statement of profit and loss

580

497
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29 Related party information

I. List of related parties and related party relationship with whom transactions have been entered into:
Holding company Brigade Enterprises Limited [BEL']

SEP Prosperita Hotel Ventures Limited ['PHVL'|

WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited ["'WTC]

Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited [PREPL]

Brigade (Gujarat) Projects Private Limited ['BGFFPL)

Brigade Foundation Trust['BFT']

Brigade Flexible Office Spaces Private Limited [BFOS

Subsidiary company

Fellow Subsidiaries Brigade Hospitality Services Limited [BHSL]
Brigade Innovations LLP ['BILLP’]

BCV Developers: Private Limited ['BCVY]

Brigade Properties Private Limited['BPPL']
Mysore Holdings Private Limited [MHPL']

Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:
Directors
Mr. Vineet Verma
Mr. Amar Mysore
M
Mr.

=R

Ms, Nirupa Shankar (Managing Director w.e.f October 05, 2024)

Bijou Kurien (w.e.f. March 28, 2024)
Anup 8 Shah (w.e.f. March 28, 2024)

Ms, Jyoti Narang (w.e.f. May 10, 2024}
Mr. Nakul Anand (w.e.f October 05, 2024)

Relative of KMP Ms. Pavitra Shankar

Chief Financial Officer Mr. Ananda Natarajan

Company Secretary Ms. P Shivaleela Reddy (upto August 09, 2024)
Ms. Middhi Parekh (upto April 8, 2023)
Ms. Akanksha Bijawat (w.e.f October 01, 2024)

Manager Mr. Rayan Aranha (w.e.fJanuary 26, 2024 upto October 4. 2024)

Mr. Arindam Mukherjee (upto January 25, 2024)

1L Transactions with related parties
Nature of transaction Name of related party March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Revenue from hospitality services 184 125
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company 15 183
Purchase of materials BEL - 15
Capital advance paid 1.250 =
Interest on borrowings 1,476 1,321
Rent paid 724 597
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company 13 12
Rent paid 1 =
Redemption of non-convertible debentures PHVL 258 -
Security deposit paid 1 -
Revenue from hospitality services - 15
Interest income on non-convertible debentures 37 34
Purchase of materials | 0
Capital advance p&!‘d . ) BHSL 76 =
Revenue from hospitality services 2 2
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company 71 136

Revenue from hospitality services BCV 0 -
Revenue from hospitality services BPPL 1 -
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company - 8
Revenue from hospitality services BFOS ! 0
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company ! 1 2
Revenue from hospitality services ] 2
Reimbursement of expenses received by the Company BGPPL 3 -
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company | 3
Revenue from hospitality services WTC 10 51
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company 202 218
BFT 0 2
Revenue from hospitality services E;E;T_ l_ﬁ i
MHPL 2 8
Mr. Ravan Aranha 54 19
P Shivalecla Reddy 4 &
Salaries and allowances - short term employee benefits Akanksha Bijawat 22 -
Niddhi Parekh - |
Ananda Matarajan 36 -
ROU asset acquired Nirupa Shankar 895 -
Pavitra Shankar 895 -
Lease Tiabilities consequent to the ROU asset acquired Nirupa Shankar 895 -
Pavitra Shankar 895 -
Interest on lease liabilities Nirupa Shankar 57 -
Pavitra Shankar 57 -
Securily deposit - lease Nirupa Shankar 250 -
Pavitra Shankar 250 -
- Bijou Kurien 16 -
// 2 A & - lBiesiors Sitting Fees S e & -
7 '\ o 36‘ B Anup 5 Shah 13 -
/ \‘3 Jyoti Marang 15 =
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Related party disclosure {continued)

V. Balances with related parties
Mature of balance Name of refated party March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Non-current borrowings (including current maturities) 13,773 12,297
Capital advance 1,250 -
Equity component of interest-free loan BEL 6,750 6,750
Trade payables 2 5
Trade Receivables 12 1
Investment in Equity shares (net of impainnent loss} 5375 5,375
Inyestment in Preference shares 3,244 3244
Investment in Other Equity 155 155
Investment in Non-convertible debentures PEVL 93 312
Security deposit 1 -
Trade receivables 2 1
Lease liabilities created consequent 1o the ROU Ms. Nirupa Shankar 952 -
Ms. Pavitra Shankar 952 -
Trade payables Ms. Nirupa Shankar 150 -
Ms. Pavitra Shankar 150 -
Capital advance BHSL 76 -
WTC 4 3!
BHSL - 147
Trade payables PREPL = o
BFOS 0 0
WTC 0 29
BHSL 0 0
BILLP I 0
Trade receivables BFPL - 4
BFOS 1] 0
BGPPL 8 1
MHPL - 2

Motes;

1. The related party transactions are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances as at
the balance sheet date are unsecured and settfement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related
party receivable or payable.

2. In respect of the transactions with the related parties, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, and the details have been disclosed above, as required by the applicable accounting standards,

3, The salaries and allowances do not include pratuity and compensated absences cost as the same are provided for based on the actuarial
valuation made at company Tevel.

4. "0" represents transactions and balances with amounts being less than Rs. 50,000,

¥. Other information:

Loan from related parties are unsecured and carries interest of 12% and are repayable from 2025, On July 1, 2020, the Company and its Holding
Company entered into an agreement for interest-fice unsecured loan of upto Rs.20,000 lakhs and repayable in quarterly instalments of Rs.1.000
lakhs each from June 2025 to March 2030. The existing loan payable of Rs. 11,274 lakhs as on June 30, 2020 (Principal - Rs.9,881 lakhs and
Interest payable - Rs.1.393 lakhs) was converted into interesi-free loan as part of the aforesaid agreement. The Company has drawn loan of
Rs.5,016 lakhs during the period July 27, 2020 to March 31, 2021 and Rs. 1500 lakhs during the period November 29, 2022 to March 31, 2023, The
Company has accounted the aforesaid loan, being interest-free in nature, as compound financial instruments in accordance with Ind AS 32 with
effective interest rate of 12%,

30 Segment reporting

The Company is engaged in the business of hospitality. The Board of Dircctors being the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the
Company's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by industry classes. All operating segments
operating results are reviewed repularly by CODM to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance.
CODM believes that these are poverned by same set of risks and returns hence, CODM reviews them as one component. Hence, there are no
additional disclosures to be provided under Ind-AS 108 — Segment information with respect to the single reportable scgment, other than those
already provided in the accompanying standalone financial statements. Further, the Company is domiciled in India and the Company's current and
non-current assets are located in India. There is no identifiable major customer in the Company who is contributing more than 10% of revenue.
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Finaneial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s prineipal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to
finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents
that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these
risks and ensures that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are
identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives.

i. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises of: interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk.

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Company’s financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company's exposure o the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily 10 the Company's long-term debt
obligations with floating interest rates. The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans
and borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant. The
impact on the entity’s profit/(loss) before tax is due to changes in the fair value of non-current and current borrowings and other current and non
current financial liabilities,

Particulars Change in Effect on
interest rate loss before tax
March 31, 2025 +1% 386
1% (386)
March 31, 2024 *1% 404
-1% (404)

b) Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates arises on account of purchases from foreign countries, The Company
has ot taken any derivative instrument during the year and there is no derivative instrument outstanding as at the year end.

The Company's unhedged foreign currency exposure at the end of the year is as below:

Mareh 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Trade payables 354 258
354 158

Note: There is no significant exposure to the Company towards foreign exchange fluctuation.

¢} Price risk

The Company is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities. The Company’s management has developed and enacted a risk
management strategy regarding commodity price risk and its mitigation. The Company is subject to the price risk variables, which are expected
to vary in line with the prevailing market conditions.

ii. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments if a counterparty default on its obligations. The Company’s
exposure to credit risk arises majorly from trade receivables/ unbilled revenue and other financial assets.

Other financial assets are bank deposits with banks and hence, the Company does not expect any eredit risk with respect to these financial assets.

With respect to other financial assets, the Company has constituted teams to review the receivables on periodic basis and to take necessary
mitigations, wherever required. The Company applies the expected credit loss {ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment
losses on trade receivables and unbilled revenue, The Company follows the simplified approach for recognition of impairment allowance on trade
receivables wherein, it recognises impairment allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. At the balance sheet date, there was no
significant concentration of credit risk and exposure thereon.

iii. Liguidity Risk
The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of borrowings and lease

contracts. The Company has assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The table below
summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Maturity period March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Financial liabilities - Current

Current borrowings - term loans from banks Within 1 year 7,336 7.180
Current borrowings - loans from related parties Within 1 year 4,000 -
Current borrowings - bank overdraft Within 1 year 3,388 -
Trade payables Within 1 year 3.438 2,615
Lease liabilities Within 1 year 172 -
Other financial liabilities Within 1 year 2,100 2,640
Financial liabilities - Non Current
Non-Current borrowings - term loans from banks Between 1-10 years 47,289 54,161
Non-Current borrowings - loans from related parties Between 1-10 years 13,790 17,790
Lease liabilities Between 1-30 years 41,539 19,560

Other financial liabilitics Between 1-3 years - 185
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32 Defined benefit plan - Gratuity
The Company operates defined gratuity plan for its employees. Under the plan, every employee who has completed at least five years of service gets a gratuity on
departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service.
The following tables summarises the components of net benefit expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss and amount recognised in the balance sheet
with respect (o gratuity. The defined benefit plan is unfunded, except as otherwise stated,

Changes in the defined benefit obligation ('DBO') and fair value of plan assets ('FVoPA') - Year ended March 31, 2025
Expense charged to profit or

Remeasurement (gains)/losses in other comprehensive income

loss
Rl | Toearad Actuarial s
Gratuity | OPEning Sub-total | Benefits [ ¢ tur[cn:l:’d'n changes chanc ':a“ r?-;ino Experie- | Sub-total| tions | Closing
¥| balance | Service | Interest | included | paid | #3518 Lexciudi HE rising from SESATISING! e included by balance
A amounts included 4 from changes I ; 1
cost | expense | in profit . i changes in i . adjustm- in employer
in net interest : in financial
or loss demographic . ents 0Cl
expense) ; assumptions
assumptions
DBO 115 42 8 50 (19) - (7) 15 39 47 - 193
FVoPA - - = # (12} 2 - - - 2 49 39
Net 115 50 45 (49) 154
liability

Changes in the defined benefit obligation ('DBO') and fair value of plan assets ('FVoPA') - Year ended March 31, 2024
Expense charged to profit or

Remeasurement (gains)/losses in other comprehensive income

loss
Ret iq Actuarial A Contribu-
Gatatty Opening Sub-total | Benefits ¢ :'m un] |1d€_| changes ohan uﬂ::'?sin Experie- | Sub-total | tions Closing
= | balance | Service | Inferest | included | paid ek (ex.c s arising from 8 B nee included by balance
i amounts included ‘ from changes h 4 .
cost | expense | in profit s : changes in - & adjustm- in employer
in net interest . in financial
or loss demographic : ents 0cC1
expense) . assumptions
assumptions
DBO 86 31 6 37 (13) - {3) 2 6 5 - 115
FVoPA - - - - - - - - - = - -
Net 86 31 G 37 (13) - (3) 2 6 5 - 115
liability

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations are shown below:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate (per annum} 6.6% 7.1%
Salary rate (per annum) 6.7% 7.4%
Mortality rate 100% of [ALM 20121  100% of TALM 2012-2014
2014
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A quantilative sensitivity analysis for significant assumplions is as shown below:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Assumplions Discount Rate Salary Growth Rate Discount Rate Salary Growth Rate
Sensitivity Level -1% + 1% -1% + 1% 1% + 1% -1% + 1%
Impaet on DBO 45 {30) (30) 45 5] (4) {4) 6
% change compared to base 29% =20% =20% 20% 5% -3% -3% 5%
due to sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a methed that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation,

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Weighted average duration (based on on discounted cashflows) - 5 years
The maturity profile of defined benefit obligation is as below:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Within the next 12 months 46 39
Between 1 and 5 years 130 65
More than 5 vears 81 66
|Tota| expected payments 257 170

Expected contributions to the defined benefit plan asset (investment in insurance fund) for the next annual reporting period is Rs. 29 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Nil)

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may vary overtime. Thus, the Company is
exposed to various risks in providing the above gratuity benefit, the most significant of which are as follows:

Interest Rate risk : The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing
the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability.

Liquidity Risk : This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short term gratuity pay-outs. This may arise due to non availability of sufficient cash/cash
equivalents to meet the liabilities.

Salary Escalation Risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation
in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing
on the plan's liability.

Demographic Risk : The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Company is exposed to the risk olactual
experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumption.
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33

34

Fair values
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

i) The management assessed that the carrving values of cash and bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables, and other financial assets and labilities
approximate their fair values largely due to their short-term maturities.

ii} The management assessed that the carrying values of bank deposits, borrowings and other financial assets and liabilitics approximate their fair values
based on cash flow discounting using parameters such as interest rates, tenure of instrument, ereditworthiness of the customer and the risk characteristics of
the financed project, as applicable.

These financial assets and financial labilities are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs as explained
above. There have been no transfers between levels during the year. The investment in equity of subsidiary is measured at cost.

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Particulars Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
Value (Level 3) Value {Level 3)
Financial Assets
Measwred at amortised cost
Investment in debentures 93 93 312 312
Trade receivables 1,849 1,849 1,654 1.654
Cash and cash equivalents 1,062 1,062 675 675
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,159 1,159 1,228 1,228
Other financial assets 1,307 1,307 890 890
Financial Liabilities
Measured at amoriised cosi
Borrowings 55,715 55,715 52,695 52,695
Trade payables 3,438 3,438 2,615 2,615
Lease liabilities 13,897 13,897 11,834 11,834
Cither financial liabilities 2,100 2,100 2,825 2,825

Capital management

The Company’s objectives of capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
adjust the return to shareholders, issue/ buyback shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in
light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity plus net debt as below.

- Equity represents total equity of the Company

- Net Debt includes borrowings (non-current and current), trade payables, lease liabilities and other financial liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents and

bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents.

Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

Borrowings 55.715 52,695
Trade payables 3,438 2,615
Lease liabilities 13,897 11,834
Other financial labilities 2,100 2,825
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (2,221} (1,903)
Net Debt (A) 72.929 68,066
Equity share capital 28,143 100
Instruments entirely equity in nature - 28,043
Other equity (15,328) (16.965)
Equity (B) 12,815 11,178
Equity plus net debt (C=A+B) 85,744 79,244
Gearing ratio (D=A/C) B85 B6%%

1n order to achieve the ohjective of maximizing shareholders value, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Any significant breach in meeting the financial
covenants would allow the bank to call borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of above mentioned interest-bearing borrowings,

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the current and previous years,




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

as Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rs. Rs.
The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier 207 ol
The amount of interest due and remaining unpaid to any supplier - -
The amount of interest paid by the Company along with the amount of the payments - -
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day.
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment - -
{which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year),
The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year. - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable for the carlier years, = =
207 92

Mote: The above information is fumished based on the information available with the Company.

36  The Company has defined process to take daily back-up of books of account in electronic mode on servers physically located in India. However, the
backup of the books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode with respect to individual hotel units of the Company has not
been maintained on servers physically located in India on daily basis.

Further, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the accounting software, except that audit trail feature is not
enabled for certain changes, if any, made using privileged/ administrative access rights to the SAP S/4 HANA application and the underlying database
and in respect of individual hotel units of the Company wherein its accounting software did not have the audit trail feature enabled throughout the vear,
Further no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with was noted in respect of the accounting software to the extent audit trail feature is enabled.
Additionally, the audit trail in respect of the relevant prior year has not been preserved by the Company as per the statutery requirements for record
retention.
The management is taking steps to ensure that the books of account are maintained as required under the applicable statute.
37 Financial ratios
a. Ratio Current ratio
Numerator Current assets
Denominator Current liabilities
As at
i March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current assets (A) 8,152 5,899
Current liabilities (B) 18,163 10,666
Current ratio (C)=(A}/ (B) 0.45 0.55
‘“achange from previous year -19%
b. Ratio Debi equity ratio
Numerator Total debt [represents current and non-current borrowings and lease liabilities]
Denominator Shareholders’ equity [represents total equity]
As at
i March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total debt (A) 69,612 64,529
Shareholder's equity (B) 12,815 11,178
Debt equity ratio (C ) =(A)/ (B) 543 577
% Change from previous year 6%
¢ Ratio Debt service coverage ratio
Numerator Earnings available for debt service
Denominator Debt service
" As at
RetiaChisinc March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit{loss) after tax (A) 1,672 1,860
Add: Non cash operating expenses and finance cost
Depreciation and Amortisation expense (B} 4,275 3,604
Finance costs (C) 6,571 6,041
Earnings available for debt services (D) = (A)HBH(C ) 12,518 11,505
Finance costs (E) 6,571 6,041
Repayment of non-current borrowings (F) 3,676 5514
Debt service (H) = (E ) + (F) 10,247 11,555
Debt service coverage ratio (I) = (D ) /(H) 1.22 1.00
o Chnnge from previous year 23%
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d Ratio Trade receivables turmover ratio
Numerator Revenue from operations
Denominator Average trade receivables
< As at
Binos Moo, March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from operations (A) 40,353 34,301
Closing Trade Receivables 1,849 1,654
Average Trade Receivables [(opening + closing) 2] (B) 1753 1,669
Trade receivables turnover ratio (C ) =(A)/ (B) 23.04 20.55
% Change from previous year 12%
¢ Ratio Trade payables tumover ratio
Numerator Total purchases
Denominator Averape trade payables
- As at
WMy Mo March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total purchases * (A) 18,793 15,588
Closing Trade Payables 3438 2,615
Average Trade Payables [(opening + closing) /2] (B} 3,027 2,830
Trade payables turnover ratio (C) = (A) / (B) 6.21 5.51
% Change from previous year 13%
*Total Purchase represents purchase of goods and services which is the aggregate of cost of materials consumed and other expenses
f Ratio Net capital turnover ratio
Numerator Revenue from operations
Denominatoer Working capital (Current assets - Current liabilities)
- As at
N — March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from operations (A) 40,353 34,301
Working capital (B) (10,011) (4,767)
Net capital turnover ratio (C ) ={A)/ (B) (4.03) {7.20)
“aChange from previous year -44%
Note: The ratio has changed mainly due to increase in revenue from operations in the current year and change in working capital during the year.
¢ Ratio Met profit ratio
Numerator Profit after tax
Denominator Revenue from operations
. As at
T Mspumre March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit/{loss) after tax (A) 1,672 1,860
Revenue from operations (B) 40,353 34,301
Net profit (C)=(A)/(B) 0.04 0.05
% Change from previous year 24%
h  Ratio Return on capital employed
Numerator Earning before interest and taxes
Denominator Capital Employed (Total equity, Total borrowings and Total lease liabilities)
: As at
Stk shnanss March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit after tax (A) 1,672 1,860
Adjustments
Add: Total tax expense (B) 1,516 722
Add: Finance costs (C) 6,571 6,041
Earnings before interest and tax (D) = (A)+ (B) + (C) 9,759 8,623
Total equity (E) 12,815 11,178
Current and Non-current borrowings (F) 55,715 52,695
Current and Non-current lease liabilities (G) 13,897 11,834
Capital Employed (H) = (E) + (F) +(G) 82,427 75,707
Return on capital employed (1) = (D) / (H) 0.12 0.11
% Change from previous year 4%
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i Ratio Return on equity ratio
Numerator Profit after tax
Denominator Average Shareholder’s Equity
¥ As at
Nl Moimess March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit afier tax (A) 1,672 1,860
Closing shareholder's equity (B) 12,815 11,178
Average sharcholder's equity [(opening + closing) /2] {C) 11,997 10,246
Return on equity (D)= (AM(C ) 0.14 018
% Change from previous year 23%
i Ratio Inventory tumover ratio
Numerator Cost of goods sold
Denominator Average inventory
As at
Bl M March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cost of goods sold (A) 3,977 3,580
Closing Inventory (B) 613 532
Average inventory [(opening + closing) /21 (C ) 573 461
Inventory turnover ratio (D) =(AM(C) 6.95 .77
Y Change from previous year =11%

Note: The Company has accumulated losses of Rs, 22,078 lakhs (March 31, 2024; Rs. 23,715 lakhs) and total equity of Rs. 12,815 lakhs (March 31,
2024: Rs. 11,178 lakhs). The Company’s current liabilities exceed its current assets by Rs. 10,011 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 4,767 lakhs). The
Company is in the initial phase of its operations and Brigade Enterprises Limited, the holding company, is committed to provide financial and
operational support to the Company for its profitable operations in the foreseeable future.

38 Additional regulatory information not disclosed elsewhere in the financial information
{i) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.
(i) The Company does not have any transactions with companics struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 360 of Companies Act,
1956.

(iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year,

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediaries shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

v

(vi) No funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guaraniee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vii) The Company has not any such transaction ‘which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, ’

(viiii}) The Company is not a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.
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39 Standards issued but not yet effective

There are no standards that are notified and not yet effective as on the date.

As per our report of even date attached

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “the Holding Company™) and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to
as “the Group™) comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss, including the statement of Other comprehensive income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information of the
subsidiary, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2025, their consolidated profit
including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Group, in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 27(b)(iii) to the consolidated financial statements, in connection with an ongoing litigation
relating to assessment of property tax. Pending ultimate outcome of the matter, no adjustments have been made in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Directors’ report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. [f, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No, AAB-4295
Regd. Otfice ; 22, Camac Street, Block 'B’, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income. consolidated cash flows and
consolidated changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of their respective companies and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group are responsible for assessing the ability of their respective companies to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of their respective companies.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

*  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern,

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

-
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*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of one subsidiary, whose financial
statements include total assets of Rs. 13,134 lakhs as at March 31, 20235, and total revenues of Rs. 6,527 lakhs and net
cash inflows of Rs. 218 lakhs for the year ended on that date. These financial statements and other financial information
have been audited by other auditors, which financial statements, other financial information and auditor’s reports have
been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section
143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on the reports of such other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of
such other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of
the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of the subsidiary, incorporated
in India, as noted in the “other matter” paragraph, we give in the “Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in
paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order.

12

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors
on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiary, as noted in the ‘other matter’
paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

(b) Inour apinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidation
of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and reports
of the other auditors, except for the matters stated in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements with respect
to the Holding Company that the backup of the books of account and other books and papers maintained in
electronic mode with respect to individual hotel units of the Holding Company has not been maintained on
servers physically located in India on daily basis and for the matters stated in the paragraph (j)(vi) below on
reporting under Rule 11{g).

(¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements;
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(d)

(e)

(H)

(h)

4)

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

The matter described in Emphasis of Matter paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the
functioning of the Group;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors
who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary company, none of the directors of the Group’s
companies, incorporated in India, is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in
paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph (j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule
Li(gk

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, incorporated in India, and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

The Holding Company and its subsidiary have not paid any managerial remuneration during the year and hence,
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Holding Company and its
subsidiary for the year ended March 31, 2025;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended. in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on
separate financial statements as also the other financial information of the subsidiary, as noted in the *Other
matter’ paragraph:

i.  The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its consolidated financial position in its
consolidated financial statements — Refer Note 27(b) to the consolidated financial statements;

ii.  The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
provision for material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary during the year ended March 31, 2025;

iv. a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary which is incorporated in India
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors
of such subsidiary that. to the best of its knowledge and belief. as disclosed in note 35(v) to the consolidated
financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or its subsidiary to or in
any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediaries shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective Holding
Company or its subsidiary (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary which is incorporated in India
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors
of such subsidiary that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 35(vi) to the consolidated
financial statements. no funds have been received by the respective Holding Company or its subsidiary
from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or its subsidiary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of

e,
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c)

the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances
performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiary which is incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that
has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain
any material mis-statement.

v) No dividend has been declared or paid by the Holding Company or its subsidiary incorporated in India;

vi) Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by the respective auditors of the

subsidiary, which is a company incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act, the Group has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the accounting software except that, audit trail feature is not enabled for certain
changes made, if any, using certain access rights and in respect of individual hotel units of the Holding
Company wherein its accounting software did not have the audit trail feature enabled throughout the year,
as described in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements. Further, during the course of audit, we and
the respective auditors of the above referred subsidiary did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with in respect of the accounting software to the extent audit trail feature is enabled.
Additionally, the audit trail in respect of the relevant prior year has not been preserved by the Holding
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention, as stated in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
[CAI Firm Registratiof Number: 101049W/E300004

per Sudhir K
Partner
Membership

UDIN: 25213157BMNZDP3232 |\

Place: Bengaluru N

% - \Bengaluru}

Date: April 18,2025
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of
our report of even date on the consolidated financial statements of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Holding Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(xxi) Qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020
(CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements are:

Si
No

Name

CIN

Holding
Company/
Subsidiary

Clause number of
CARO report
which is qualified
or is adverse

Brigade Hotel Ventures

Limited

U74999K A2016PLC095986

Holding Company

vii (b) and xix

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Membership Number: 213157

UDIN: 25213157BMNZDP3232

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 18, 2025
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of
our report of even date on the consolidated financial statements of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Holding Company ™) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary (the Holding
Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), which are companies incorporated in India, as of that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group which are companies incorporated in India are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the respective company s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing,
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both, issued
by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of
their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal
financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the Group; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the Group are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Group: and (3)
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provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the Group's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group, which are companies incorporated in India, have maintained in all material respects, adequate
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note or*Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by

the [CAL
Other Matter
Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls

with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, insofar as it relates to one subsidiary, which
is a company incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiary.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

per Sudhi
Partner
Members

Number: 213137
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UDIN: 25213157BMNZDP3232

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 18, 2025




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

CIN: UT4999KA2016PLCO23986

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work in progress
Intangible assets
Fiancial assets

Investments

Oiher non=-current {inancial assels
Deferred tax assels (net)
Other nop-current asscts
Current tax assels (net)
Sub total

Current assets

Imventorics

Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash cquivalents
Bank balances ather than cash and cash equivalents
Other current financial assets

Other current assets

Sub total

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Equity share capital
Instruments entirely equity in nature
Orther equity
Equity attributable to equity halders of the parent
Non-controlling interests
Total equity
Liabilitics
Non-current Habilities
Financial liabilities

Buorrowings

Lease liabilities

Other non-current financial lishilities
Other non-current labilities
Non-current provisions
Sub total

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liahilities
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Towul outstanding ducs of ereditors other than micre enterprises and small enterprises
Other current financial labilities
Other current liabilities
Current provisions
Sub tatal

Total equity and labilities

Summary of materiul accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part o the consoliduted financial statements.
As per onr report of even date attached

For 5.R. Batlibol & Assoviates LLP
Chartered Accountants
1CAl Firm registration fumber: 101049WE300004

per Sudhi
Parner
Menhers|

Place: Bengalury
Date: April 18, 2025

Notes March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
i | 72,969 63,082
4 2,027 T.168
32 151 B
5 [ 6
f 1,205 1,052
Tk 5,743 TRl
b 2778 154
7.3 1.056 355
85,965 81,921
9 671 591
i 2.3 176
1§ 1,077 T98
112 1159 1,228
6 975 287
b 2,609 1,677
B,792 6,757
94,757 88,678
121 28,143 160
122 150 28,193
13.1 {19.605) {21.589)
8,688 6,704
13.2 1,545 1,197
10,233 T.9M
14 49,339 54,913
28 13,937 11.834
15 34 209
17 il 8T8
I 155 109
64,327 67,943
) 12.393 5.206
28 2] &
18
2 136
3538 2.597
15 2332 il
1% L3835 1648
16 192 143
20,197 12.834
94,757 RE.67H
2z

Vineet Vepfia
Director
W 06362115

Ananda Natarajan
Chicf Financial Ofticer




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

CIN: UT4999KA2016PLCO95986

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 19 46,825 40,170
Other income 20 243 35
Total income (i) 47,168 40,485
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 21 4476 4,034
Employee benefits expense 22 8.631 T.626
Depreciation and amortization expenses 23 4980 4,364
Fiance costs 24 7256 v RE9
Other expenses 25 17.274 14.364
Total expenses (i) 42,617 37277
Profit before tax (iii) = (i) - {ii) 4,451 3,208
Tax expense 7.2
Current tax - -
Dreferred tax charge 20835 94
Tuotal tax expense (iv) 2,085 94
Profit for the year {v) = (iii} - (iv) 2,366 3114
Other comprehensive income
[tems not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans (46) 9
Incomie tax effect - credit(charge) 12 (2)
Other comprehensive income ("OCI') (vi) (34) 7
Total comprehensive income for the year (vii) = (v} + {vi) 2,332 3.121
Profit for the vear attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent ' 2,019 2487
Nuon-Controlling interests 347 627
Other comprehensive income
Equity halders of the parent (35) [
Non-Controlling interests | !
Total comprehensive income for the vear aftributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 1.984 2493
Non-Controlling interests 348 628
Earnings per share ('EPS’) attributable to cquity holders of the Parent: 26
[nominal value of share Rs.10 (March 31, 2024: Rs.10}]
Basic EPS (Rs.) 0.72 (.88
Diluted EPS (Rs.) 0.72 0.4%
Sunmmary of material accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial stalements.
As per our report of even date attach ed
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of
Chartered Accountants Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
LCA Firm registratigfnimber; 101049W/E300004 CIN: UT4999KA2016PLOURIIRO

Vineet v,.(
Dir

i / Director
DIN; ﬂ'Z?Sﬂ:‘y DIN: 06362113
MW

Place: Bengaluru Ananda Natarajan
Date: April 18, 2023 Chief Finaneial Officer  Company

Shankar
per Sudhir\KamanJain :
Partner
Membership no.; 213137
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Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

CIN: UT4999KA2016PLCIY5Y86

Caonsolidated Statement of Cashflows for the year ented March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization expense
Reversal of impairment allowance for bad and doubtiul debts
Liabilities no longer required written back
Government Grants - Capital subsidy
{Profity/Loss on saie of property, plant and equipment
Interest expense
Interest income
Operating profit before working capital changes
Muovements in working capital ©
{Decrease) / increase in frade payables
(Decrease) / increase in other labilities
(Deerease) / increase in provisions
{Increase} / dec
(Increase) / decrease in trade receivable
tIncrease) / decrease in other assets
Cash generated from operations
Direct taxes (paid)/refunds, net
Net cash flow from/{used in) operating activities (A)

se in inventories

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and cquipment (including capital work in progress)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Redemption of bank deposits

Investinent in bank deposits

Interest received

Net cash flow fron-/(used in) investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Redemption of debentures

Interest paid

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilitics
Payment of interest portion of lease labilities

Net eash flow from/{used in) financing activities (C)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B 1 C)
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand

Balances with banks:

- in current gecounts

- in deposit accounts with original maturity less than 3 months
Cheques on hand

Total cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet

Less: Bank overdrait

Total cash and cash equivalents as per statement of cashflows

Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
4,451 3208
23 4,980 4,364
20 (13) 139)
20 {25) =
20 {16) (16)
20,25 10 192
2 7,256 b.589
20 (152) (192)
16,489 14,386
1.103 (412)
(429) 270
49 0
(79} {155)
(108) {48)
(1,629) 1450
15,3% 15.591
(501) (105)
14,895 15,486
. 1 1o e (9.474) (5.548)
3 12
867 L.o09
(1,006) (800)
111 197
(9,499) (,530)
1,832 11,569
(4.718) (14.314)
(34) "
(4.442) (4.787)
(103) (1,079)
(694} (602}
(8.179) {9.213)
(2.783) 1.743
395 (1.348)
(2,388) 305
27 27
945 768
104 -
| 3
11 1.077 798
14 (3.463) (403
12,388) 395

Note: Refer note 11,1 for changes in liabilities arising from financing activities and note 28 for non-cash investing and financing activitics pertaining 1o

right-of-use assets and lease Habilities, respectively.

Summary of material accounting policies
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Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
CIN: UT4999KA2016PLC095986

Cansolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital No. of shares Amount
(in lakhs)
(refer note 12.1)
Equity shares of Rs.10 cach issued, subseribed and fully paid-up '
As at April 01, 2023 10 100
Changes during the year & .
As at March 31, 2024 A1) 100
As at April 01,2024 10 100
Changes during the year 2,804 28.043
As at March 31, 2025 2,814 28,143
B. Instruments entirely equity in natare No. of shares Amount
{in lakhs)
{refer note 12.2
Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each ("OCRPS')
As at April 01, 2023 280 28.043
Changes during the year -
As-at March 31, 2024 280 28.043
As at April 01, 2024 280 28,043
Changes during the year (280) (28.043)
As at March 31, 2025 = -
Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each (CCPS)
As at April 01, 2023 2 150
Changes during the vear 3 e
As at March 31, 2024 2 150
As at April 01, 2024 2 150
Changes during the year - -
As at March 31, 2025 2 150
C. Other cquity
(refer note 13.1 and 13.2)
Attributable to the equity holders of the parent Non- Total
Capital | Revaluation | General Equity Retained | Sub total | controlling
Reserve Reserve | Reserve | component of | earnings Interests
Compound
Finameial
Instruments
Asat April 01, 2023 1 §29 o1 6,750 (31,753)] (24,082) 569 (23,513)
Profit for the year - - - - 2487 2487 627 34
Other comprehensive income - - - - [ {1 | 7
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 2,493 2493 678 3,121
As at March 31, 2024 1 829 91 6,750 (29.260)] (21,589) 1,197 (20,392)
As at April 01, 2024 1 829 91 6,750 (29.260) (21,589) 1197 (20,392)
Profit for the year # - - - 2,019 2019 347 2,366
Other comprehiensive income - - - - (35) (35) | (34}
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 1,984 1,984 348 2,332
As at March 31, 2025 1 829 91 6,750 (27.276)] (19.605) 1.545 (18.060)
Summary of material accounting policies 21
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Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

1 Corporate information

The Consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited (CIN' U74999KA2016PLC0O95986) ("BHVL®
or the “Company’ or the ‘Holding Company’) and its subsidiary (collectively. the Group). The Holding Company was incorporated on August 24,
2016. The registered office of the Company is located at 29th Floor & 30th floors, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus. 26/1, Dr Rajkumar
Road, Malleswaram-Rajajinagar. Bangalore 560 055. The Group is carrying on the hospitality business including running and managing hotels.

The consolidated financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Company on
April 18,2025,

Z Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. and presentation requirements of Division [1
of Schedule [11 to the Companies Act. 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule [11). as applicable to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. except for certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (refer accounting policy regarding linancial instruments) which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs). All the values are rounded off to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise
indicated.

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
a)  Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary as at March 31, 2025, A subsidiary
15 an entity over which the Group has control, The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. A subsidiary is
tully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Consolidation procedure:

1. The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control. Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the Holding Company with
those of its subsidiary. For this purpose. income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities
recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

i, Profit or lass and each component of ather comprehensive income (OCT) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and
to the non-controlling interests. even if this results in the nen-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments
are made to the tinancial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All
intra-group assets and liabilities. equity. income. expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

1. Offset (ehminate ) the carrying amount of the Holding Company s investment in the subsidiary and the Holding Company s portion of equity
of such subsidiary,

v, Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity. income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the
group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets. such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated
in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS12 Income
Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions,

v The tinancial statements of the subsidiary used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the Holding
Company. i.e.. vear ended on March 3 1st and are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
crrcumstances.

Vi, Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of the subsidiary 15 shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

consolidated statement of changes in equity and balance sheet respectively
b)  Use of estimates
The preparation ot consolidated tnancial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments. estimales and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues. expenses. assets and labilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. at the end of the reporting
period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions. uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities. The effect of change in an
accounting estimate 15 recogmzed prospectively

¢} Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents ussets and habihinies i the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification Py,




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purposes of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period. or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current,

A lhability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- Itis held primarily for the purposes of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period. or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has
evaluated and considered its operating cycle as one year and accordingly has reclassified its assets and liabilities into current and non-current,

Assets and liabilities. other than those discussed above. are classified as current to the extent they are expected to be realized/ are contractually repayable
within one year from the Balance sheet date and as non-current. in other cases.

Deferred tax assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current assets/ liabilities.
d)  Property. plant and equipment

Capital work in progress is stated at cost. net of accumulated impairment loss. if any. Property. plant and equipment are stated at cost. net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs it capitalization criteria are met and
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at
the purchase price,

Each part of an item of property. plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately.
This applies mainly to components for machinery. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise. when a major inspection is performed. its cost is recognized in the carrying
amount o' the plant and equipment as & replacement 1t the recognition criterta are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in
profit or loss as ineurred

Subsequent expenditure related 1o an item of property. plant and equipment is added to its book value enly if it increases the future benefits from its
previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing property. plant and equipment. including day-to-day repair and
maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts. are charged to the statement of protit and loss for the period during which such expenses are
incurred.

Borrowing costs directly attributable Lo acquisition of property, plant and equipment which take substantial peried of time to get ready for its intended
use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

Advanees paid towards the acquisition of property. plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under
ather non-current assets.

An item of property. plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal or when ne future economic
benefits are expected from sts use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the Property. plant and equipment is de-recognized,
Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalized. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is capitalized to the extent

to which the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental thereto. Other indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred
during the construction period which is neither related to the construction activity nor is incidental thereto is chareed to the statement of profit and loss,

Costs ol assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work- - progress.
e} Depreciation on property. plant and equipment

Depreciation is caleulated on written down value basis using the following usetul lives esumated by the management. which are equal to those
prescribed under Schedule [l to the Companies Act. 2013

Category of Asset Useful lives (in vears)
Buildings 60
Plant and machinery 13
Electrical mstallation and egquipment ' 10
Furniture and fixtures

. Used in hotels. restaurants. ete. 8

. Others 10

Computer hardware
e End user devices
»  Server and network equipment &
Office equipment
Muotor vehicles

L)

L

o




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes ta Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ¢ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

For certain hotel-specific assets, depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at. based on the useful lives estimated by the
management based on technical assessment as below:

Category of Asset Useful lives Schedule 11 lives
(in years) (in years)

Buildings 25-30 60
Plant and machinery 15 5
Electrical installation and equipment 10 19
Furniture and fixtures

. Used in hotels, restaurants, etc. 8 8

. Others 10 10
Computer hardware

e End user devices 3 3

o Server and network equipment 8 6
Office equipment 3 3
Motaor vehicles 8 8

Right-oftuse assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:
Leasehold land — 23 to 35 vears

The management considers residual value at 3% as preseribed under Schedule [T of Companies Act, 2013

The management believes that the above estimated useful lives are realistic and retflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely
to be used.

The residual values, usetul lives and methods of depreciation of property. plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively. il appropriate.

f)  Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. it any,

Intangible assets comprising of computer software are amortized on a written down value basis over a peried of six years. which is estimated by the
management to be the useful life of the asset. In case of certain hotels, the intangible assets comprising of computer software are amortized on a straight-
line basis over a period of six years as estimated by the management.

The residual values. useful lives and methods of amortization of intangible assets are reviewed at cach financial year end and adjusted prospectively.
1f appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when asset is derecognized.

)  lmpairment

A. Financial assets

The Group assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a finaneial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and measures the required expected
credit losses through a loss allowance. The Group applies the expecied credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment losses
on trade receivables, The Group follows the simplitied approach for recogmition of impairment allowance on trade receivables wherein. it recognises
impairment allowanee based on litetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all
trade receivables that do not constitute a finaneing transaction.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to
the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

B, Non-financial assets

The Group assesses at cach reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. IF any indication exists. or when annual
impairment testing for an asset 1s required. the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount 1s determined for an individual asset. unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those [rom other assets or groups of'assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset
or CGL exceeds s recoverable amount. the asset 15 considered impaired and 1s written down to its recoverable amount, In assessing value in use. the
estimated luture cash Nlows are discounted Lo their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account. if available IFno such
transactions can be idenufied. an appropriate valuation model 15 used.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of protit and loss. Alter impairment. depreeiation 1s provided on the revised carrying amount of the
asset over its remaining useful hfe

An assessment 15 made at each reporting date to determine whether there 1s an indication that previously recogmsed impairment losses no longer exist
or have decreased. 1F such indication exists. the Group estimates the asset’'s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss 1s
reversed only 1f there has been a change i the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal 1s limited so that the carrying amount of the assct does not exceed its recoverable amount. nor exceed the carrving amount




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

that would have been determined. net of depreciation. had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised
in the statement of prolit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case. the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

h) Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is. or contains, a lease, That is. i the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Where the Group is lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases. except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, The Group
recognises lease labilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

The Group at the inception of the lease contract recognizes a Right-of-Use (Roll) asset at cost and corresponding lease liability, except for leases with
term of less than bwelve months (short term ) and low-value assets, The cost of the right-of-use assets comprises the amount of the initial measurement
ol the lease liability, any lease payments made at or before the inception date of the lease plus any initial direct costs, less any lease incentives received.
Subsequently. the right of-use assets are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any The right-of-
use assels is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use assets.

For lease liabilities at inception. the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate is readily determined. if that rate is not readily determined, the lease
payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments include fixed payments {including in substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate. and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease. if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventorigs) in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs,

The Group recognizes the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use assets. Where the carrying amount of
the right-of-use assets is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability. the Group recognizes any remaining
amount of the re-measurement in the statement of profit and loss.

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are
considered to be low value, Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term,

Where the Group 15 lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transter substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset is classified as operating leases,
Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income, Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue i the period in which they are earned.

1} Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized/inventorised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to statement

of profit and loss.

) Inventories

Inventories comprising of food. beverages and other items are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventories is determined on a
weighted average basis

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price n the ordinary course of business. less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary
ta make the sale

k) Revenue recognition
Revenue fiom conracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transierred to the customer at an amount that reflects
the consideration o which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services Revenue i1s measured based on the transaction
price. which is the consideration. adjusted for discounts and other credits. i any. as specitied in the contract with the customer. The Group presents
revenue from contracts with customers net of mdireet taxes in its statement of profit and loss,

The Group considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction
price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price. the Group considers the effects of vanable consideration, the existence of significant
lnancing components. noncash consideration. and consideration pavable to the customer. 1f any
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The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Revenue from hospitality services
Revenue from hospitality operations comprise revenue from room charges. food & beverage sales, facility usage charges and allied services, including
telecommunication, laundry, ete. Revenue 1s recognized as and when the services are rendered and is disclosed net of allowanees.

Contract balances

Contract asset 15 the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer, I the Group performs by transferring goods
or services Lo a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due., a contract assel is recognised for the earned consideration
that is conditional.

Trade receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.. only the passage of time 1s required before
payment of the consideration is due).

Contract lability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
lability is recognised when the payment is made. or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract,

Income from lease rentals
Refer accounting policy under ~Leases™ above.

Interest income

Interest income, including income arising from other financial instruments measured at amortized cost, is recognized using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period. where appropriate. to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the finaneial instrument (for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but dees not consider the expected credit losses,

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the Group’s right to receive dividend is established. which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend,

I} Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation curency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Company operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company s
functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

i) Initial recognition - Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded at the functional curreney spot rate at the date the transaction first qualifies
for recognition,

i) Conversien - Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items. which
are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of initial transaction, Non-
monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate
at the date when such value was determined.

i) Exchange differences - The Group accounts for exchange differences arising on translation/ settlement of foreign currency monetary items as
mcome or as expense in the period in which they arise. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary 1tems measured at fair value 1s treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (e translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss
15 recognised in OCT or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively)

m) Retrement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefits in the form of state governed Employee Provident Fund, Emplovee State Insurance and Employee Pension Fund Schemes are
defined contribution schemes (collectively the “Schemes ™). The Group has ne obligation. other than the contribution payable to the Schemes The Group
recognizes contribution payable to the Schemes as expenditure. when an emplovee renders the related service, The contribution paid in excess of
amount due 15 recognized as an asset and the contribution due in excess of amount paid is recogmzed as a liabil ity

Gratuity. which 15 a defined benefit plan. is acerued based on an independent actuarial valuavon. which 1s done based on project unit eredit method as
at the balance sheet date. The Group recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset or lability, Gains and losses
through re-measurements of the net defined benefit ability/ (asset) are recognized in other comprehensive income. Remeasurements. comprising of
actuarial gains and losses. excluding amounts ineluded in net interest on the net defined benefit lability. are recognised immediately in the bulance
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCH in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reelassitied to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benelit obligation as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss
B-Service costs comprising current service costs. past-service costs. gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements: and
B Interest expense
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Accumulated leave. which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months. is treated as shori-term employee benefit, The Group measures the
expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expeets to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting
date.

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months., as lon g-term employee benefit for measurement purposes,
Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. made at the end of each
financial year, Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss. The Group presents the accumulated leave liability as a
current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting
date.

n)  Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. except when they relate to items that are recognized i other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. in which case. the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
respectively

1. Current income tax

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount ex pected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based
on the taxable income for that period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date

1. Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or hability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences. carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses. to the
extent that 1t is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences. and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized, Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability
is settled. based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities it and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to mcome taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis. or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously. in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

0)  Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision 1s recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it 1s probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required 1o settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. It
the effect of the time value of maney is material. provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects. when appropriate. the risks specific
o the liability. When discounting is used. the increase in the provision due to the passage of lime 13 recognized as a finance cost,

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
oceurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that 1s not recognized because it
i5 not prabable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where
there is a hability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent Liabihty but discloses
it 1n the consolidated financial statements, unless the possibility of'an outflow of resources embody ing economic benelits 1s remote

py  Gevernment grants

Jjovernment grants are recogmised where there 1s reasonable assurance that the grant will be received. and all anached conditions will be complied
with: When the gramt relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematie basis over the periods that the related costs. for which itis
intended to compensate. are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset. 1t is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of
the related asset.

q)  Financial Instruments

A, Finanvial assets . N7
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niti

nition and measurement

Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For

VYV VY

v

purposes of subsequent measurement. financial assets are classified in four categories:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no reeyeling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) (debt instruments)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOC! category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. For debt instruments,
at fair value through OCL interest income. foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the profit or loss
and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI
Upon derecognition. the cumulative fair value changes recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Group had not irrevocably
elected to classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the
right of pavment has been established.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI {equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition. the Group can elect to classify irrevacably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at fair value through
OCI when they meet the definition of equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classitication
is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classitied as at FVTPL.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recyeled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit
and loss when the right of payment has been established. except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of
the financial asset. in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to
impairment assessment.

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
A “financial asset” is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a)  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows. and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specitied dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement. such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) methed.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss.
This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Investment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary is carried at cost. Impairment recogmized. if any. is reduced from the carryving value.
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De-recognition of financial asset

A financial asset (or. where applicable, a part of a finaneial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed

from the Group’s consolidated balance sheet) when:

a)  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b)  The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an bl igation to pay the received cash Hows in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through’ arrangement. and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset. or (b) the Group has neither transterred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. but has
transferred control of the asset.

B. Financial iabilities
Imitial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition. as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings. or as payables,
as appropriate. The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables. loans and borrowings including bank overdrafis.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement. financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

L

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
»  Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

i, Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

ii. Financial habilities at amortized cost
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest {*EIR") method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process, Amortized cost s caleulated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in
the statement ot profit and loss.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using EIR method. For trade and other payables maturing
within one year from the balance sheet date. the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

De-recognition of financial lability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability 15
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms. or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified. such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts 1s recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

C. Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After inital recognition. no reclassification is made for
financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments. a rec lassification is made only it
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.

D Offsetting of financial instruments

Finaneial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis. to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

E, Fair value of financial instru

The Group measures its financial instruments such as derivative mstruments, ete at fair value at cachi balance sheet date. Fair value 1s the price that
would be received to sell an assel or paid to ranster a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement 1s based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transter the liability takes place either:

> In the principal market for the asset or Lability. or
» In the absence of a principal market. i the most advantageous market for the asset or liablity

The tair value of an asset ora liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or hability. assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account market participant’s
ability to generate economic henetits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in ats highest and best use.

All assets and habilities for which tarr value 18 measured or disclosed in the consolidated tnaneial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy. described as follows. based on the lowest level input that is significant to the far value measurement as 4 whole:

~ Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets lor identical assets or liabilities.
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# Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement s directly or indirectly
observable,
~ Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is sigmficant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised i the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transters have
oceurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as 4 whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures. the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks
of the asset or hiability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above,

r)  Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are
entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share. the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

5)  Cash and cash equivalents

The Group considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase. to be cash equivalents.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net
of outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

t)  Cashdividend to equity holders of the Holding Company

The Holding Company recognizes a hability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Holding Company when the distribution 1s authorized
and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Holding Company, Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval
by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors.

22 Sigmficant accounting judgments. estunates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues. expenses. assets and liabilities. and the acGrouping disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertamty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrving amount of assets or liabilities aftected
in future periods.

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. management makes judgment, estimates and assumptions which have the most significant
etfect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements. The key judgment. estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. are deseribed below. The Group based its judgments and assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the consolidated Mnancial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or eircumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they oceur.

Significant accounting judgements. estimates and assumptions used by management are as below:
Defired benefit plans - Gratuity

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ {rom actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount
rate. future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities mvolved in the valuation and its long-term nature. a defined benefit obligation
1s highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions, All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date

The parameter most subject to change 1s the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India. the management
considers the mterest rates of government bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to
change onlv at mterval in response to demographic changes. Future salary inereases are based on expected future inflation rates and expected salary
nerease thereon,

Uiseful life and residual value of property. plant and equipment and imtangible assets
The usetul life and residual value of property. plant and equipment and mtangible assets are determimed based on evaluation made by the management
of the expected usage of the asset. the physical wear and tear and techmeal or commercial obsoleseence of the asset, Due to the judgments mveolved m

such estimates the usetul fite and residual value are sensitive to the actual usage in future period

Evaluation of control. jout contral or significant mfluence by the Group over its mvesiee enitiy for disclosure
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Judgment is involved in determining whether the Group has control over an investee entity by assessing the Group’s exposure/rights to variable retums
from its involvement with the investee and its ability o affect those returns through its power over the investee entity. The Group considers all facts
and circumstances when assessing whether it controls an investee entity and reassess whether it controls an investee entity if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more elements of control. In assessing whether the Group has joint control over an investee the Group assesses
whether decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control, Further, in assessing whether Group has
significant influence over an investee. the Group assesses whether it has the power Lo participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee. but is not in control or joint control of those policies.

Measwrement of financial instruments at amortized cost

Financial instrument are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest ("EIR") method. The computation of amortized cost 15
sensitive to the inputs to EIR including effective rate of interest. contractual cash flows and the expected life of the financial instrument. Changes in
assumptions about these inputs could affect the reported value of financial instruments.

2.3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 01. 2024,
The Group has not early adopted any standard. interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

(1) Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts

“The Ministry of corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts. vide notification dated August 12, 2024, under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules. 2024. which is effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 01. 2024,

Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement,
presentation and disclosure. Ind AS 117 replaces Ind AS 104 Insurance Contracts. Ind AS 117 applies to all types of insurance contracts, regardless of
the type of entities that issue them as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation features; a few scope
exceptions will apply. Ind AS 117 is hased on a general model, supplemented by:

= A specitic adaptation for contracts with direet participation features (the variable fee approach)

= A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

The application of Ind AS 117 had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as the Company has not entered any contracts in the
nature of insurance contracts covered under Ind AS 117,

(11) Amendment to Ind AS 116 Leases — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The MCA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024 which amend Ind AS 116, Leases. with respect to
Lease Liability ina Sale and Leaseback.

The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure
the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or afier April 01, 2024 and must be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback
transactions entered into after the date of initial application of Ind AS 116

The amendment does not have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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3.1

Property, plant and equipment

Office
Freehold l’;i:"{e;g‘[t. Buildings Plant & Eleetrical Office “aUP eom puter Motor Furniture Total
land Assets)* machinery installation equipment (ROU hardware wvehicles & fixtures
Assets)*
Cost
At April 01, 2023 3,807 5,729 63,313 12,023 5418 6,386 - 1,392 196 16,947 115211
Additions - 6,000 311 L] 31 240 - 34 - 226 6932
Disposals - - (360) (112) (1) 1162) - (9) - (87) (732)
At March 31, 2024 3,807 11,729 63,264 12,001 5447 6,464 - 1,417 196 17,086 121,411
Additions 75 1,790 65418 916 949 833 334 333 14 1,274 12,835
Disposals - - - (7 (115) (231 - (29) (11) (20) (413)
At March 31, 2025 3,882 13,519 69,682 12,910 6,281 7,066 334 1,620 199 18,340 133,833
Depreciation
At April 01, 2023 - 631 18,308 7,757 4018 5,735 - 1,235 136 14,697 52,537
Charge for the year - 181 2,135 641 331 2195 - 109 15 6i3 4.320
Disposals % - {192) (89) (2) (156) - (8) - (&1} (528)
At March 31, 2024 - 812 20,251 8,309 4.347 5.894 - 1.336 151 15,229 56,329
Charge for the vear - 422 3,235 622 392 373 83 81 13 719 4,930
Disposals - - - (5) (109) {223) - (29) (1) (19) (395)
At March 31,2025 - 1,234 22,476 8,926 4,630 6,044 83 1,388 154 15,929 60,864
Net hook value
At March 31,2024 3,807 10917 43,013 3,692 1,100 570 - 81 45 1,857 65,082
At March 31, 2025 3,882 12,285 47.206 3,984 1,651 ],IEEZ 251 232 45 2411 72,969

Capitalised borrowing costs

Refer note 4 for details of capitalised borrowing costs.

Assets under construction
Refer note 4 for details of capital work in progress

Assets pledzed

Refer note 14 for details of assets pledzed as security for borrowings.

Assets leased
* Represents Right-of-use assets, Also refer note 28 for details.

Title deeds of immuovable properties

The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Holding Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee) included in property. plant and equipment are held in the name of the Holding Company

The property, plant and equipment of the Holding Company include land, buildings and other assets with a gross carrving value of Rs. 35,168 lakhs, which were
acquired by the Holding Company from its Ultimate Parent Company - Brigade Enterprises Limited pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement between the Holding
Company and its Ultimate Parent Company and their respective shareholders and creditors in terms of the provisions of Sections 230 1o 233 of the Companies Act,
2013 to transfer the hotel business undertakings, including the aforesaid land, buildings and other assets, 1o the Holding Company (hereinafier referred to as “the
Scheme™). The Scheme was approved by National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT") on March 13, 2018 with an appointed date of October 01, 2016 and was filed
with the Registrar of Companies. Karnataka on April 01, 2018
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3.2 Intangible Assets

Computer
Suftxare Tomd
Cost
At April 01, 2023 940 940
Additions - -
Disposals - -
At March 31, 2024 940 940
Additions 143 143
Disposals - -
At March 31, 2025 1,083 1,083
Amortization
At April 01, 2023 808 808
Charge for the year 44 -
Disposals - -
At March 31, 2024 8§52 852
Charge for the vear 50 50
Disposals - -
At March 31, 2025 902 902
Net book value
At March 31, 2024 88 88
At March 31, 2025 181 181
4 Capital work in progress
Propcrt?r Plant Total
and Equipment
At April 01, 2023 2,939 2,939
Additions during the year 4,636 4,636
Less: Capitalised during the vear (407) {407)
At March 31, 2024 7.168 7.168
Additions during the year 5.569 3,369
Less: Capitalised during the year (10.710) (10,710}
At March 31, 2025 2,027 2,027
Capital work in progress ageing schedule
Amount in Capital work in progress for the period of Total
<I Year 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 vears
At March 31,2025
Projects in progress 1,556 220 15 236 2,027
Projects temporarily suspended - - s -
Total 1,556 220 15 236 2,027
At March 31, 2024
Projects in progress 4448 413 77 2,240 7.168
Projects temporarily suspended = = & - =
Total 4,448 403 77 2,240 7,168
Notes:

1. The amount of borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended March 31, 2025 was Rs. 237 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs, 163 lakhs) and
the capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation was 9-10% pa

2. Refer note 14 for details of assets pledged as security for borrowings

3. There are no project whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.
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5 Non-Current Investments

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Unguoted

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Investment e cquity shares

55,655 (March 31. 2024 - 55.655) Equity Shares of Z10/- each fully paid up in Aban Green Power Private 6 6
Limited*

Investments carried at amortised cost
Investment m Crovernment  Triust securities
-National Savings Certificate®* - “

Total Investments 6 6

a) Aggregzate book value/ market value of quoted investments - -
b) Aggregate value of unquoted investments 6 f
£) Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments 4 5

*The subsidiary has invested in an energy generating company as per the regulation of Electricity Act. As per share holder agreement entered into by the subsidiary,
the shares are required to be transterred back at cost. Accordingly. the cost of investment represents the fair value of the investments and hence the cost equals the
fair value,

**Represents Rs.5.000 as investment in National Savings Certificate

6 Other financial assets
{Unsecured, considered good)
Non-current Current
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Margin money deposits with banks* 631 647 - -
Deposits with original and remaining maturity of more than 12 months 491 253 - -
Security deposit 58 149 735 42
Interest accrued 3 3 70 70
Unbilled revenue - - 170 175
1,205 1,052 975 287

*Margin money deposits have been made towards borrowings, letter of credit and bank guarantee facilities availed by the Group from banks. Refer note 14 for
details of deposits pledged as security for borrowings,

\3
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7 Income tax

7.1 Deferred tax

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Dieferred tax fahilitics

Froperty, plant and equipment and intangible assets- Impact of difference between tax depreciation and 2,398 2,529
depreciation/amortization charged for the financial reporting

Right of use assets 3155 3.179
Impact relating to compound financial instruments 971 1,588
Gross deferred tax liabilities 6,524 7,296
Deferred tux assels

Unused tax losses 8214 11,065
Lease labilities 3519 3.761
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current vear and allowed for tax purposes ina 136 286
subsequent year on pavment basis

Impact of accounting for financial instruments at amortized cost 388 -
Gross deferred tax assets 12.267 15,112
Net deferred tax assets 5,743 7.816

Notes:

The Taxation Laws {Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 (‘the Ordinance’) provides an option to domestic companies o pay income-tax ata lower rate of 23,17% instead
of the normal rate of 29.12% (as applicable to the Holding Company ), if it opts for not availing of certain specified exemptions or incentives. The Holding Company
has made an assessment of the impact of the Ordinance and has decided to opt for the lower tax rate of 25.17%. Consequently, deferred tax charge for year ended
March 31, 2025 is higher by Rs. 938 lakhs.

The unused tax losses towards business loss [Deferred tax assets of Rs. 823 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 2,582 lakhs)] can be carried forward for a maximum periad
of eight financial vears immediately succeeding the financial vear in which the loss was first computed and would expire, if not utilised, starting from financial vear
2028-2030. Further, the unused tax losses towards unabsorbed depreciation [Deferred tax assets of Rs.7.389 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs.8.483 lakhs)| can be carried
forward for an indefinite period.

Reconciliation of deferred tax asset (net)

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Opening balance 7816 7912
Deferred tax recognised in profit or loss (2.085) (94)
Deterred tax recognised in OCI 12 (2)
Closing balance of deferred tax assets (net) 5,743 7,816
Movement in deferred tax assets (net) for the year fs:f.'ln; r '.;:];; e o f!n Recng::;ed o I:;:;ognmef{ tm \:ala;: c;; 3;::; 4
ended March 31, 2024 April 01, stutemu:;tsfm It or ther equity Marc +
(a) Deferred tax liabilities
Property. plant and equipment and intangible assets- 2,315 214 - - 2529
Impact of difference between tax depreciation and
depreciation/amartization charged for the financial
Right of use assets 1 485 1,694 - - 3179
Impact relating to compound financial instruments 1,972 (384) i £ 1,588
5,772 1.534 - - 7.296

(b) Deferred tax assets
Unused tax losses 11,251 (186) . - 11,063
Lease hiabilities 1.966 1,795 - - 3761
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit 467 {179) {2} - 286
and loss in the current year and allowed for tax
purposes in a subsequent year on pavment basis

13,684 1.430 {2) - 15,112

Net deferred tax assets (h) - (a) 7.912 {94) (2) - 7.816
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Movement in deferred tax assets (net) for the year
ended March 31, 2025

{a) Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets-
Impact of difference between tax depreciation and
depreciation/amortization charged for the financial
reporting

Right ol use assets

Impact relating to compound financial instruments

(b) Deferred tax assets

Unused tax losses

Lease liabilities

Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit
and loss in the current pertod and allowed for tax
purposes In a subsequent period on payment basis
Impact of accounting for Anancial instruments at
amortized cost

Net deferred tax assets (b) - (a)

7.2 Tax expense
The major components of income tax expense are;

Profit or Loss section
Current tax
Current income tax charge
Deferred tax eredit
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences

Income tax expense/(credit) reported in the statement of profit and loss

OCT Section

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year

Income tax relating to re-measurement (gains )/ losses on defined benefit plans

Income tax (expense)eredit reported in OCI

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate

Accounting profit/(less) before income tax

Statutory income tax riate

Tax at statutory income tax rate 25.17% (March 31, 2024: 29.12% / 27.82%)

Tax effect on recognition of unrecognised tax loss in subsidiary
Tax effect due to change in rate

Tax effect of other items. net

Tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

7.3 Current tax assets (net)

Current tax assets (net)

Other assets
(Unsecured, considered good )

Balances with statutory © government authorities
Advance to suppliers

Capital advances

Prepaid expenses

Advance lo employees

(ther assets

Inventories

(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Food and beverages

Stores and spares

For detls of imentories pledged as secunity for borrowings refer n

Balance as at Recognised in ~ Recognised in  Recognised in Balance as at
March 31, 2024 statement profit or ocCl Other equity March 31, 2025
loss

2529 (131} - - 2398
3179 (24) - - 3,135
1,588 (617) & i 971
7.296 (772} - - 6,524
11,0635 (2.851) - - 214
3,761 (232) - - 3,529
286 [162) 2 “ 136

- 388 - - 388
15.112 (2.857) 12 - 12,267
7.816 (2.085) 12 - 3,743

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

2,085 94

2,085 94
12 12)
12 2)

Murch 31, 2025 March 31,2024

4,451 3,208

1,120 926
- (802)

938 -
17 (30)

2,085 04

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

1,056 535
1,056 555
Non-current Current

March 31, 2025 Mareh 31,2024 March 31, 2028

March 31, 2024

103 66 617 893
" . 347 247
2.666 68 : g
g 20 1.610 494
. " 30 43
. . 5 .
2,778 154 2,600 1,677

March 31, 2025

Mareh 31, 2024

619 523
52 68
671 391




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

10 Trade receivables
{unsecured)

March 31, 2035

March 31, 2024

Trade receivables - considered good

Receivables from related parties (refer note 29) 46 6

Receivables from others parties 2,355 2,120
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Recervables from others parties 35 70
Total trade receivables 2,356 2,246
Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Recervables from others parties (55) (70)
Total trade receivables 2,301 2,176

Note: Refer note 14 for details of trade receivables pledged as security for borrowings.

4. Details of provision for impairment is as below: March 31, 2025

March 31,2024

Opening balance 70 129

Less: reversal during the year {15} (39)

Balance at the end of the year 55 70
b. Trade receivables ageing schedule:
Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from due date of pavment

<6 months| 6 months- 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 Years Total
1 year

March 31, 2025
Undisputed. considered good 2,070 7 = - 2,077
Undisputed, credit impaired . 3 7 13 I3 - 40
Disputed, considered good - - - 224 224
Disputed. credit impaired - - - 15 15
Tatal 2,075 14 13 15 139 2,356
March 31, 2024
Undisputed, considered good 1,928 24 - - - 1,952
Undisputed, credit impaired - 8 43 4 55
Disputed, considered good - - - - 224 224
Disputed, credit impaired - - - - 15 15
Total 1,928 32 43 4 239 2,246
Notes:

1. Trade receivable are non interest bearing and are due from the date of transactions,

2. The Group applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment losses on trade receivables, The Group follows the
simplified approach for recognition of impairment allowance on trade receivables. The application of the simplified approach does not require the Group to track
changes in credit risk, Rather, it recognises impairment allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal)
recognised during the vear is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected under the head “other expenses/other income” in

the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

3. Trade receivable include receivable due from directors and other related parties

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
W Trades & Projects Private Limited ["WTC'| 4 29
Brigade Hospitality Services Limited ['BHSL'} 0 0
Brigade Innovations LLP ['BILLP'] 1 0
Brigade Properties Private Limited]'BPPL!| - 4
Brigade Gujarat Projects Private Limited [BGPPL| 8 |
Brigade Flexible Office Spaces Private Limited BFOS'] 0 ]
Mysore Holdings Private Limited [[MHPL| - 3
SRP Gears Pyt Lid ['SRP Gears'] - 0
Brigade Enterprises Limited ['BELT] k] 13
Perungudi Real Estates Private Limied |'PREPLY) 2 -

2 4+

Subramanyam Engineering Limited | 'SEL|




Brigade Hotel Yentures Limited

Notes to Consolidated Finaneial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Cash and cash equivalents

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Cash on hand 27 27
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts 945 768
- in deposit accounts with original maturity less than 3 months 104
Cheques on hand ! 3
1077 798
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:
; Interest accrued
. Non-current Current
Particulars ; _ and not due on Total
borrowings borrowings _
borrowings
Balance as at April 01, 2023 50,105 13,145 2 63,252
Cash inflows 11.569 = - 11.569
Cash outflows (14.314) = (14,314)
Accrual of finance cost (other than interest on lease liability) - 6,126 6,126
Interest paid {other than interest on lease liability) 14,787) (4.787)
Accrual of interest 1,335 . (1.333) -
Bank overdraft (1,721 - (1.721)
Others* 6.218 16,218 - .
Balance as at March 31, 2024 54,913 5,206 6 60,125
Cash inflows 1.833 _ 4 1,832
Cash outflows (4.718) (4,718}
Accrual of finance cost (other than interest on lease liability) 4 3931 3.931
Interest paid tother than interest on lease liability) - (4442} (4.442)
Accrual of interest 1 491 (1.491) “
Redemption of debentures (54) . - (34)
Bank overdraft - 3.062 - 3.062
Others* (+,125) 4,125 =
Balance as at March 31, 2025 49,339 12,393 4 61,736
* Others indicate the effiect of movement between current and non-current borrowings basis the balance repayment period.
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Mon-current Current
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 March 31, 2025 Mureh 31, 2024
Balances with banks:
Margin money deposits 651 647 - -
Deposits with original and remaining maturity of 491 253 - -
more than 12 months
Deposits with orsginal maturity of more than 3 - 1,159 1,228
months but not mare than 12 months
1,142 900 1,159 1,228
Less: Disclosed under non-current financial assets (1.142) (900} - -
(refer note 6)
i z 1,159 1.228

Note: Deposits earned interest based on the bank deposit rates.

Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost
Investments (note 3)

Other Minancial assets (note 6)

Trade receivables (note 10)

Cash and cash equivalents (note 11.1)

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (note 11.2)

Muareh 31, 2025

March 31,2024

6 6
2180 1.339
2301 2176
1,077 798
1.159 1.228
6,723 5,547

p




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Consolidated Finaneial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

12.1

Equity share capital

Authorised share capital March 31,2025 March 31,2024

No. in lakhs Rs. No. in lakhs Rs
Equity shares of Rs.10 each:
Balance at the beginning of the vear 90 900 91 900
Changes during the vear 4410 44,100 -
Balance at the end of the year 4,500 43,000 90 900
Issued, subscribed and fully paid- up share eapital March 31,2025 March 31,2024

No. in lakhs Rs. No. in lakhs Rs
Equity shares of Rs.10 each:
Balance at the beginning of the year 0 10 10 100
Changes during the year 2,804 28.043 @
Balance at the end of the year 2,814 28.143 10 100

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Holding Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote per share. The
Holding Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in

the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In event of liquidation of the Holding Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Holding Company. after

distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

(a) Shares held by ultimate parent company

Murch 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Brigade Enterprises Limited. the ultimate parent company
2,814 lakhs (March 31, 2024 - 10 lakhs) Equity shares of Rs.10 each

28.143 100

(b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Holding Company:

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
No. in lukh % holding No. in lakh Y holding
Equity shares of Rs.10 ¢ach fully paid
Brigade Enterprises Limited, the ultimate parent company 2814 10070 10 100%




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

12.2

(c) Shares held by promoters

As at March 31, 2025

Promoter Name

No.of shares at  Change during  No. of shares at

“a of total shares % change during

the beginning of the year the end of the the year
the year {im lakhs) year
(in lakhs) {in lakhs)
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid
Brigade Enterprises Limited, the ultimate parent company 10 2,804 2814 100.00% 28043%

As at March 31, 2024

Promoter Name

No.of shares at  Change during  No. of shares at

% of total shares % change during

the beginning of the year the end of the the year
the yvear {in lakhs) year
(in lakhs) {in lakhs)
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid
Brigade Enterprises Limited, the ultimate parent company 10 - 10 10.00% -

d} For details of shares reserved for issue under options, refer note 12.2

Instruments entirely equity in nature

Authorised share capital

Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference

Shares of Rs.100 each ("OCRPS'):
Balance at the beginning of the vear
Changes during the year

Balance at the end of the year

0.01% B Series Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference

Shares of Rs.100 each (CCPS):
Balance at the beginning of the year
Changes during the vear

Balance at the end of the year

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2024

No. in lakhs Rs. No. in lakhs Rs.
281 28,100 281 28,100
(281) (28, 100) — &
- - 281 28,100

March 31,2025

March 31,2024

Na. in lakhs Rs.

No. in lakhs Rs.

300

("

3 300

- 300

3 300




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Issued, subseribed and fully paid- up share capital

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
No. in lakhs Rs. No. in lakhs Rs.
OCRPS of Rs, 100 each:
Balance at the beginning of the year 280 28043 280 28043
Changes during the year (280) (28.043) 3 A
Balance at the end of the year - " 280 28,043
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
No. in lakhs Rs. No. in lakhs Rs.
0.01%: B Series CCPS of Rs.100 each:
Balance at the beginning of the year 2 150 3 150
Changes during the vear - - = 2
Balance at the end of the year 2 150 2 150
Total 2 150 282 28,193

Terms of conversion/ redemption of OCRPS issued by the Holding Company

OCRPS has been issued carrying a coupon of 0.01% {point zero one per cent) per annum calculated on the face value of such OCRPS, The holder of OCRPS may
at any time prior to the expiry of 20 (twenty) years exercise the option to convert the OCRPS to equity shares. Each OCRPS shall be convertible into 10 (ten)
equity shares or lesser number based on the consent of the holder. The holder of OCRPS shall be entitled o voting rights as per the Companies Act, 2013,

The holder has confirmed compulsory conversion of the OCRPS into equity shares in the ratio of 1:10 and accordingly OCRPS has been recorded and disclosed as
"Instruments entirely equity in nature”

With effect from May 10, 2024, pursuant to the option exercised by the holder of the OCRPS and approval of the Board of Directors of the Holding Company,
2.80.43.000 OCRPS have been converted to 28,04,30,000 equity shares of the Holding Company of Rs. 10/- each at a ratio of 1:10 (ie., 10 Equity Shares issued
for every | OCRPS held by the holder of the OCRPS).

Terms of conversion/ redemption of CCPS issued by the subsidiary

B Series Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares holder may at any time prior to expiry of nine years exercise the option to convert Lo ten equity
shares for every one preference share held. The dividend is pavable as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the subsidiary. The preference shares rank
ahead of the equity shares in the event of a liquidation, The holder of CCPS shall be entitled to voting rights as per the Companies Act, 2013,

(a) Shares held by ultimate parent company

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Brigade Enterprises Limited, the ultimate parent company
Nil {March 31_ 2024 - 280 43,000) OCRPS of Rs. 100 each - 28,043
1,50,000 (March 31, 2024 - 1,50,000) 0.01% B Series CCPS of Rs 100 each 150 150




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

I:
|
|

(b) Details of shareholders holding more than 3% shares in the company:

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
No, in lakhs % holding No. in lukhs % holding

OCRPS of Rs. 100 each :
Bripade Enterprises Limited, the ultimate parent company - - 280 100%
0.01% B Series CCPS of Rs. 100 each :
Brigade Enterprises Limited, the ultimate parent company 3 100% 2 1006
(e) Shares held by promoters
As at March 31, 2025

No. of shares at Change during No. of shares at % of Total Shares % change

Promoter Name

the beginning the year the end of the

during the year

of the year year
{in lakhs) (in lakhs)
Brigade Enterprises Limited, the ultimate parent company
OCRPS of Rs. 100 each 28,043 (28.043) - - -100%
0.01% B Series CCPS of Rs. 100 each 150 - 150 50.00% -
As at March 31, 2024
No. of shares at Change during No. of shares at % of Total Shares % change

" the beginning the year the end of the during the year
Promoter Name -
of the year year
{in lakhs) (in lakhs)
Brigade Enterprises Limited, the ultimate parent company
QCRPS of Rs. 100 each 28,043 - 28.043 100.00% -
0.01% B Series CCPS of Rs. 100 gach 150 - 150 50.00% -




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

13.1

Other equity

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Equity Component of Compound Financial Instruments

Balance at the beginning of the year 6,750 6,750
Add: Equity component of interest-free related party loans during the year - -
Balance at end of the year (A) 6,750 6,750

Equity component of compound financial instruments being deemed capital contribution (i.e. interest-free related party loans) represents the residual amount after
deducting from the fair value of the instrument as a whole the amount separately determined for the liability component and tax effect thereon.

Capital Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 1
Add: Additions during the year
Balance at end of the year (B) 1 1
Capital reserve represents reserve recorded in the subsidiary company ag part of demerger scheme, which can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the
Compantes Act.

Revaluation Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Additions during the year -
Balance at end of the year (C) 829 829

829 829

Revaluation reserve represents reserve arising on revaluation of land in the subsidiary company. Upon disposal, any revaluation surplus refating to the particular
asset being sold is transferred directly to retained earnings.

General reserve

Balance at the beginning of the vear 91 91
Add; Additions during the year - -
Balance at end of the year (D) 91 91

General reserve represents amounts transferred from retained earnings in the subsidiary company. which can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act.

Retained earnings / (deficit)

Balance at the beginning of the year (29.260) (31,733)
Profit for the year 2.019 2,487
Other comprehensive income for the year {35) 6
Balance at the end of the year (E) {27.276) (29.260)
Total other equity (A+B+C+D+E) (19.605) (21,589)

Retained earnings are the profitsi{loss) that the Group has eared/incurred till date, less any transters to general reserve. dividends or other distributions paid to
sharcholders. Retained ¢arnings include re-measurement loss / (zain) on defined benefit plans. net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and

Laoss,




Brigade Hotel Yentures Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

132 Non-controlling interests®
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1,197 369

347 627

1 1

1,545 1,197

Balance at the beginning of the year
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Balance at the end of the year

*includes instruments entirely equity in nature issued by the subsidiary company to its sharcholders being non-controlling interests

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Authorised share capital
Na. in lakhs Rs. No. in lakhs Rs.

0.01% A Series Cumulative Com pulsory
Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each
(CCPS):

Balance at the beginning of the year 4 3400 34 3400
Changes during the year
Balance at the end of the year

34 3,400 34 3,400

0.01% B Series Cumulative Compulsory

Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each

(CCPS):

Balance at the beginning of the vear

Changes during the year -
Balance at the end of the year 3 300

d

300 3 300

Issued, subscribed and fully paid- up share capital

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
No. in lakhs Rs. No, in lakhs Rs.

0.01% A Series CCPS of Rs.100 each:
Balance at the beginning of the year 1
Changes during the vear =

Balance at the end of the year

0.01% B Series CCPS of Rs.100 each:
Balance at the beginning of the vear
Changes during the vear

Balanee at the end of the year

13
o
=

14
7
=

Terms of conversion/ redemption of CCPS issued by the subsidiary

A Series and B Series Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares holder may at any time prior to expiry of nine vears exercise the option to convert to
ten equity shares for every one preference share held. The dividend is pavable as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the subsidiary. Each holder of CCPS
is entitled to one vote per share, The preference shares rank ahead of the equity shares in the event of a liquidation. The holder of CCPS shall be entitled to voting
rights as per the Companies Act, 2013,

Holders of A Series CCPS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Subramanian Engineering Limited, the non-controlling interests
50,000 (March 31, 2024 - 50.000) 0.01% A Series CCPS of Rs. 100 each 50 50
Holders of B Series CCPS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Subramanian Engineering Limited. the non-controlling interests
150,000 ( March 31, 2024 - 1,50 000) 0.01% B Series CCPS o’ Rs, 100 cach 150 150




Brigade Hotel YVentures Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

14 Borrowings

B i Maitasity March 31,2025 March 31,2024
interest rate period

Non-current borrowings
Term loan from banks (secured) 8-10% Upto 2033 39294 42,534
Loans from related parties (unsecured: refier note 29) Note (1) Note (1) 10.045 12,297

49,339 54,831
Debentures (unsecured)
100,000 0.01% Unsecured unlisted A series Non-Convertible Debentures (A Series NCD) of Rs. 100/~ each - 82
fully paid up

49339 54,913
Current borrowings
Current maturities of debentures (Unsecured)
53,920 0.01% Unsecured unlisted Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD) of Rs, 100/~ gach fully paid up - 49
1.00.000 0.01% Unsecured unlisted A series Non-Convertible Debentures (A Series NCD) of Rs 100/- each 92 .
fully paid up
Bank overdraft { Secured) 8-10% On demand 3465 403
Current maturities of non-current borrowings - term loan from banks (Secured) B- 100 Upto 2033 5,108 4,754
Current maturities of non-current borrowings - Loans from related parties (unsecured) Note (i) Note (i) 3,728 i
Total Current borrowings 12,393 5,206
Notes:

{i) Term loan from banks are secured by way of first mortgage of hotel project properties, assignment of certain current assets and future receivables. The loans
carries floating interest rate in the range of 8-10% and are repavable over period of 29153 monthly instalments of Rs.37-Rs.939 lakhs.

{ii) Loan from related parties are unsecured and carries interest of 12% and are repayable from 2025, On July 1, 2020, the Holding Company and its Ultimate Parent
Company entered into an agreement for interest-free unsecured loan of upto Rs.20,000 lakhs and repayable in quanterly instalments of Rs. 1,000 lakhs each from June
3025 o March 2030, The existing loan payable of Rs.11.274 lakhs as on June 30, 2020 (Principal - Rs.9.881 lakhs and Interest payable - Rs.1,393 lakhs) was
converted into interest-free loan as part of the aforesaid agreement. The Holding Company has drawn loan of Rs.5.016 lakhs during the period July 27, 2020 to March
31,2021 and Rs. 1500 lakhs during the period November 29, 2022 to March 31, 2023. The Holding Company has accounted the aforesaid loan, being interest-free in
nature, as compound financial instruments in accordance with [nd AS 32 with effective interest rate of 12%.

(i1} Bank overdrafts are secured by way of mortgage of a hotel project property. assignment of certain current assets and future receivables.

{iv) The quarterly returns | statements filed by the Group with banks under the borrowings arrangements are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Group.

(v} With regard to the borrowings from banks, the Group has utilised the loans solely for the purposes for which they were taken.
(vi) No funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Group

{vit) The Group has satisfied all debt covenants as per the terms of borrowings.

Debentures (issued by the subsidiary company)
i) NCD have been issued at par carrying an interest rate of 0.01% per annum and with effect from March 25, 2020, These are mandatorily redeemable at the expiry of

5 vears from the date of s issue i.e.. March 20, 2025, The same has been redeemed during the vear ended March 31, 2025,

ii) A series NCD have been issued at par carrying an interest rate of 0.01% per annum and with effect from Décember 07, 2020, These are mandatorily redeemable at
the expiry of 3 years from the date of its issue .., December 06, 2025




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

15 Other financial liabilities

Lease deposits

Payable towards purchase of property, plant and equipment

Employee benefits pavable
Interest accrued and not due

Interest free deposits from customers

Other payable

16 Provisions

Provusion for emplovee benefits

Praviston for gratuity (refer note 32)
Provision for leave encashment

17 Other liabilities

Advance from customers
Deferred government grants®
Deferred lease income
Statutory dues payable

Non-Current Current
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 Murch 31,2025 Mareh 31,2024
34 209 191
. - 1,273 2,050
- - 602 548
. = 4 ]
= = 234 237
& 5 28 263
34 209 2,332 3,104
Non=Current Current
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 March 31,2024
146 102 47 40
9 7 145 103
155 109 192 143
Non-Current Current
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
- ” 611 524
862 878 16 16
= E 153 154
# - 63 954
862 878 1,385 1,648

* The Holding Company has received grants in the nature of capital subsidy, interest subsidy and electricity duty subsidy of Rs. 1,056 lakhs under the Tourism Policy
for the State of Gujarat (2015-2020) from the government of Gujarat for the purpose of construction of a hotel property in GIFT eity, Gujarat,
The capital subsidy is towards capital investment made by the Holding Company in the hotel property, Accordingly, amount of capital subsidy received is treated as a
deferred government grant and is recognised as income in the statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.
The interest subsidy and electricity duty subsidy are towards the costs incurred by the Holding Company towards construction of the hotel property and the same has
been recogmsed as income in the statement of profit and loss to the extent of the corresponding expenses incurred by the Holding Company
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I8  Trade payables

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 274 136
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
- Payable to related parties (refer note 29) 318 152
- Payable to other parties 3,220 2445
3,812 2,733
Trade pavables ageing schedule:
Particulars Unbilled Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
and not
Muonths - ) Total
due <6 Months % Io‘m =1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years >3 Years
Year
March 31, 2025
MSME - 274 - - - 274
Others 1,979 1,254 300 5 - 3,538
Disputed dues -MSME - - - -
Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 1,979 1,528 300 5 - 3,812
March 31, 2024
MSME - 136 - - - 136
Others 1404 1143 | 8 25 2,597
Disputed dues -MSME - - = ) N
Disputed dues - Others = = = % %
Total 1414 1,279 1 8 25 2,733
Note: Trade payable are outstanding from the date of transactions
Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Mon-current borrowings (note 14) 49 339 54913
Current borrowings (note 14) 12,393 3.206
Other financial liabilities (note 15) 1,366 3313
Lease hiabilities (note 28) 14.020 11,834
Trade payables (note 18) 3812 2733
51,930 77,999
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19

9,

19.2

20

21

Revenue from operations
Revenue from contracts with customers
- Revenue from hospitality services

Income from leasing

Other operating revenue
- Other ancillary services

Disaggregated revenue information

Set out below is the disagerepation of the Group's revenue from contracts with customers by timing of transfer of goods or services:

Revenue from contracts with customers

March 31,2025 March 31,2024
46,007 39473
643 532
46,650 40,005
175 165
175 165
46,825 40,170

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Revenue from hospitality services and other ancillary services - Recognised over time 46,182

Contract balances

Trade receivables
Unbilled revenue

Advance from customers

Trade receivable are due from the date of transactions.

39.638
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
2,301 2176
170 175
2471 2,351
6l 324
611 524

Unbilled revenue pertains to transactions where performance obligation has been satisfied and contractual invoices have not been raised.

Contract liabilities includes advance tfrom customers and deferred revenue representing transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance
obligations, The outstanding balance has decreased pnimarily on account of recognition of revenue in current year,

Revenue recognised during the period that was included in the contract Liabilities balance at 34

the beginning of the period:

Other income

Interest income on financial assets carned at amortised cost:
Bank deposits
Others
Government grants
Liabilities no longer required written back
Reversal of impairment allowance for bad and doubtful debts
Profit on sale of property, plant & equipment (net)
Miscellangous income

Cost of materials consumed

Inventory at the begimning of the vear

Add: Purchases duning the vear

Less: Inventory at the end of the vear

March 31, 2025

March 31,2024

133 164
20 28
16 16
25 -
13 39

i 6

32 42

243 315

March 31, 2025

March 31,2024

91 436
4,356 4189
5147 4.623

(6711 (391)
4,476 4,034
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22 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus (refer note 32)

Contribution to provident and other funds

Staff welfare expenses

23 Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right of use assets

(refer note 3.1

Amortization of intangible assets (refer note 3.2)

24 Finance costs

Interest expense on financial liabilities at amortised cost

on bank borrowings

on related party borrowings (refer note 29)

on lease liabilities
on others
Other borrowing costs

15 Other expenses

Power and fuel
Rent {refer note 28)
Repairs & maintenance

Buildings

Plant & machinery

Others
Sub-contracting expenses
Consumable costs
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Payment to auditor (refer note below)
Property taxes
Advertising and sales promotion
Agency commission
Security charges
Training and recruitment expenses
Legal and professional charges
Directors sitting fees
Printing and stationery expenses
Travelling & conveyance

Loss on sale of property, plant & equipment {net)

Communication expenses
Exchange difference (net)
Miscellaneous expenses

Payment to auditors (excluding goods and service tax):

As auditor: Audit fees
Out of pocket expenses

March 31,2025

March 31,2024

7,364 6,300
450 396
817 730

8,631 7,626

Mareh 31, 2025

March 31,2024

1,930 4320
50 44
4,980 4,364

March 31,2025

March 31, 2024

4,003 4400
1,491 1,335
1,332 763
3 2
433 389
7,256 6,889
Muarch 31, 2025 March 31,2024
2919 2875
1,032 781
489 350
423 409
377 381
1911 1141
1,545 1,333
189 237
771 490
B3 62
66 464
823 597
1,693 1,289
19 B
100 74
1762 g
54 i
184 159
814 638
12 158
214 180
46 25
196 196
17,274 14,364

Murch 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

89 59
b 3
95 62
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26

7

Earnings per share ('"EPS")

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity holders of the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year,

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the vear plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity
shares

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computation:

March 31, 2025 Mirch 31, 2024

Profit attributable to equity shareholders z019 2,487
Effect of dilution - B
Profit attributable to equity shareholders adjusted for the effect of dilution 2,019 2,487
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (No.in lakhs) 2814 2,814
[includes Nil (March 31, 2024: 2,804 lakhs) equity shares to be issued on conversion of OCRPS

being a mandatorily convertible instrument, Also refer note 13.2]

Effect of dilution 5 =
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 2,814 2,814

Note: The impact of OCRPS, being mandatorily convertible instruments, have not been considered in the computation of diluted EPS as the same has already
been included in the computation of basic EPS

Commitments and contingencies

a. Capital commitment
The estimated amount of contracts (net of capital advance) remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for is Rs. 19,007 lakhs (March 31, 2024

Rs. 2,298 lakhs),

b. Contingent liabilities

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(1) Bank guarantee 221 358

(1) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts in the nature of:

-Income Tax demands 267 252
2,033 700

-Goods and Service Tax demands

(1i1) Property tax demand under litigation

The Holding Company has been discharging property tax in respect of its hotel properties, In this regard. the Holding Company has received a demand notice
from the municipal authority assessing the property tax for certain hotel property for the period from financial year 2011-12 to financial year 2021-22
resulting in demand of Rs.9,222 lakhs including interest and penalty thereon and the Holding Company has subsequently paid Rs.4,093 lakhs under protest
and an additional amount of Rs.310 lakhs to be paid under protest, which are provided for. During the year ended March 31, 2025, aforesaid demand was
revised by the municipal authority to Rs. 2,874 lakhs (net of payment under protest already provided for) for the financial year 2011-12 to financial year 2023
24 under One time settlement Scheme by a competent authority.

The Holding Company has litigated the aforesaid matter. which is pending adjudication. The Holding Company is reasonably confident of a favourable
outcome 1n respect of the aforesaid matter based on the management’s evaluation and the legal opinion obtained by the management. Pending ultimate
outcome ol the matter, no adjustments have been made in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

(iv) The Code on Sucial Security, 2020 (*Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidential assent
in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. Certain sections of the Code came into effect on 3 May 2023, However, the final
rules/interpretation have not vet been issued. Based on a preliminary assessment, the Group believes the impact of the change will not be significant,




Brigade Hotel Yentures Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

18 Leases

A. Group as Lessee during the year

The Group has taken land parcels on lease for operation/construction of hotel units with a lease period of 23-35 years with certain escalation

and extension clauses. The Group's obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets.

The Group also has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months or less, The Group applies the “shart-term lease” recognition exemptions for

these leases.

Set out below are the carrying amount of right-of-use assets recognised and
movements during the year:

Right of use assets
(Leasehold land)

Right of use
assets (Office
equipments)

Balance as at April 01, 2023 5,008 -
Additions during the year 6,000 -
Depreciation during the vear (181) -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 10,917 -
Additions during the year

a) Amount of lease liabilities recognised 1,327 334
b) Difference between the lease deposit and present value of lease deposit 463 £
Depreciation during the year (422) (83)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 12,285 251

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements
during the year:

Balance as at April 01, 2023

Additions during the year

Accretion of interest

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities
Balance as at March 31, 2024

Additions during the year

Accretion of interest

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Payment of interest portion of lease labilities
Balance as at March 31, 2025

Lease liabilities

6,752
6,000
763

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

MNan-current lease habilities 13,957 11,834
Current lease labilities 83 -
Total 14,020 11.834
The effective interest rate for lease liabilitics is [2%0. The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 31

Statement of profit and loss March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 505 181
Interest expense on lease liabilities 1322 763
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses under rent) 1,032 781
Total amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss 2.859 1,725

Statement of cash flows March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Cash outflow for leases - towards principal
Cash outflow for leases - towards mterest

103
(L)

1,079
602

B. Group as lessor during the year

The Group has entered into cancellable operating leases consisting of certain retail and banquet spaces in the hotels on short term basis with

renewal clauses. The Group is also reguired to maintain the property over the lease term.

Particulars March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Lease rentals recognised as an income in the statement ol profit and loss

643

532

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Particulars Murch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Withtn one vear 56 83
Afler one year but not more than five vears el -
Muore than live vears - -
86 83
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29 Related party information

I. List of related parties and related party relationship with whom transactions have been entered into:

Ultimate Parent Company

Fellow Subsidiaries

Brigade Enterprises Limited ['BEL']

WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited ['WTC'| Brigade Hospitality Services Limited ['BHSL']
Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited [PREPL'] Brigade [nnovations LLP ['BILLP']

Brigade {Gujarat) Projects Private Limited ['BGPPL']

Brigade Foundation Trust['BFT]

Brigade Flexible Office Spaces Private Limited [BFOS'|

Brigade Properties Private Limited['BPPL']

Mysore Holdings Private Limited [MHPL']

BCV Developers Private Limited [BCV']

Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP”) and relative of KMP

Directors of
Helding Company

Directors of
Subsidiary

Relative of KMP

Chief Financial
Officer

Ms. Nirupa Shankar { Managing Director w.e.f October 03, 2024
Mr. Vineet Verma

Mr. Amar Mysore

Mr. Bijou Kurien (w.e £ March 28, 2024)

Mr. Anup 5 Shah (w.e.f, March 28, 2024)

Ms. Jyoti Narang (w.e.f May 10, 2024)

Mr. Nakul Anand (w.e.f October 05, 2024)

Mr. Badri Palaniappan

Ms. Visalakshi

Ms. Susan Mathew

Mr. Bijou Kurien (w.e.f. October 23, 2024)

Mr, Sanjeev Sridharan {w.e f November 08, 2024)

Ms. Pavitra Shankar

=

mn =

Mr. Ananda Natarajan

Company Secretary Ms. P Shivaleela Reddy (upto August 09, 2024)

Manager

Ms. Niddhi Parekh (upto April 8, 2023)
Ms Akanksha Bijawat (w.e.f October 01, 2024)

i

Mr. Ravan Aranha (w.e.{ January 26, 2024 upto October 4, 2024)
Mr Arindam Mukherjee (upto January 25, 2024)

Other sharcholder of the subsidiary company

Subramanyam Engineering Limited | "SEL']
Mr. Badni Palaniappan

Entities in which the other shareholders of the subsidiary company exercises control/significant influence

SRP Gears Pvt Ltd ['SRP Gears']
SRP Tools Pvt Ltd ['SRP Tools]
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1. Transactions with related parties
Nature of transaction Name of related party March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Revenue from hospitality services 215 13

Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company 15 183
Interest on borrowings BEL 1.476 1,321
Purchase of Materials . 5
Rent paid 724 597
Capital advance paid 1.250 -
Purchase of materials I 0
Revenue from hospitality services BHSI 9 7
Capital advance paid ’ 76 -
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company 73 138
Revenue from hospitality services BCV 0 4
Revenue from hospitality services 10 ]

Redemption of non-convertible debentures SEL 54
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company 4 3
Interest on non-convertible debentures 13 14
Revenue from hospitality services BPPL | -
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company - 8
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company I 2

: ; i s BFOS

Revenue from hospitality services | 0
Revenue from hospitality services WTC 15 51
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company 202 218
Revenue from hospitality services 6 2
Reimbursement of expenses received by the Company BGPPL 3 f
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company | 3
PREPL 3 4
BILLP 16 3
g : i MHPL 2 8
Revenue from hospitality services BFT 0 3
Badri Palaniappan 0 0
SRP Gears 0 0
ROU asset acquired Nirupa Shankar 895 -
Pavitra Shankar 895 -
Lease liabilities created consequent to the ROU Nirupa Shankar 895 -
Pavitra Shankar 803 -
Interest on lease labilities Nirupa Shankar 57 -
Pavitra Shankar 57 -

Security deposit - lease Nirupa Shankar 250
Pavitra Shankar 250 -
Bijou Kurien 16 “
Makul Anand 8 -
Directors Sitting Fees Al 5 Shah ]3_‘ -
= Jyoti Narang 15 =
Sanjeev Sridharan 0 -
Susan Mathew o I
Rayvan Aranha 54 19

Akanksha Bijawat a2
Salaries and allowances - short-term employee benefits Ananda Natarajan 36 u
Niddhi Parckh - 1
P Shivaleela Reddy 4 ]
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29  Related party disclosure (continued)

HI.  Balances with related parties

Nature of balance Name of related party March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Mon-current borrowings (including current maturities) 13,773 12,297
Equity component of interest-free loan 6,750 6,750
Trade Receivables BEL 30 15
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (B Series CCPS) 150 150
Capital advance 1,250 -
Trade pavables 2 5
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares - 200
(A Series and B Series CCPS) = -
Debt component of compound financial instruments SEL - -
{NCD and A Series NCD) 1
Trade receivables 2 4
" e B} o Ms. Nirupa Shankar 952 -
Lease liabilities created consequent to the ROU Ms. Pavitra Shankar 953 <
; Ms. Nirupa Shankar 150 -
e st Ms. Pay itI:a Shankar 150 -
Capital advance BHSL 76 =
WTC 14 -
e BHSL - 147
Trade payables PREPL = 5
BFOS 0 1]
WTC 4 29
BHSL 0 0
BILLP 1 0
BPPL - 4
, BGPPL 8 |
Trade receivables BFOS 0 0
MHPL - b
PREPL 2 -
SRP Gears - ]
Badri Palaniappan - al
MNotes:

1. The related party transactions are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances at the vear end
are unsecured and settlement oceurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivable or payable.

2. In respect of'the transactions with the related parties, the Holding Company and its subsidiary have complied with the provisions of Section 177
& 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, and the details have been disclosed above, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

3. The salaries and allowances do not include gratuity and compensated absences cost 2s the same are provided for based on the actuarial valuation
made at company Jevel.

4. "0" represents transactions and balances with amounts being less than Rs. 50,000

Iv. Other information:

Loan from related parties are unsecured and carries interest of 12% and are repayable from 2025, On July 1, 2020, the Holding Company and its
Ultimate Parent Company entered into an agreement for interest-free unsecured loan of upto Rs.20,000 lakhs and repayable in quarterly instalments
of Rs.[.000 lakhs each from June 2025 to March 2030, The existing loan payable of Rs.11,274 lakhs as on June 30, 2020 (Principal - Rs.9.881 lakhs
and Interest payable - Rs.1.393 lakhs) was converted into interest-fiee loan as part of the aforesaid agreement. The Holding Company has drawn
loan of Rs.5,016 lakhs during the period July 27, 2020 10 March 31, 2021 and Rs. 1500 lakhs during the period November 29, 2022 to March 31,
2023, The Holding Company has accounted the aforesard lean, being interest-free in nature, as compound financial instruments in accordance with
Ind AS 32 with effective interest rate of [2%,

30 Segment reporting

The Group is engaged in the business of hospitality. The Board of Directors being the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Group's
performance and allocates resources based on an analvsis of various performance indicators by industry classes. All operating segments operating results are
reviewed regularly by CODM o make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess thenr performance. CODM believes that these are
governed by same set of risks and returns hence. CODM reviews them as one component. Hence, there are no additional disclosures to be provided under
Ind-AS 108 - Segment information with respect to the single reportable segment. other than those already provided in the accompanving consolidated
financial statements. Further, the Holding Company and it's subsidiary 1s domiciled in India and the Group's non-current assets are located in India, There is
o identiliable major customer in the Group who is contributing more than 10%s of revenue.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's principal financial Habilities comprise borrowings. trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to
finance the Group's operations. The Group's principal financial assets include loans, trade, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents
that derive directly from its operations,

The Group is exposed 1o market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's senior management oversees the management of these risks
and ensures that the Group’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are
dentified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group™s policies and risk objectives.

i. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will Auctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk.

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group's financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term debt
abligations with floating interest rates. The Group manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivily to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant. The
impact on the entity’s profiviloss) before tax is affected through the impact of floating rate borrowings, as follows,

IRy Change in Effect on
) interest rate | loss before tax
March 31, 2025 1% 444
-1% {ddd)
March 31, 2024 “1% 473
-1% (473)

b} Cumrency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates arises on account of purchases from foreign countries. The
Group has not taken any derivative instrument during the vear and there is no derivative instrument outstanding as at the year end.

The Group's unhedged foreign currency exposure at the end of reporting period 1s as below:

March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Trade Pavable 360 238
Note: There is no significant exposure to the Group towards foreign exchange fluctuation.

b Price risk

The Group is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities. The Group’s management has developed and enacted a risk
management strategy regarding commaodity price risk and its mitigation. The Group is subject to the price risk variables, which are expected
1o vary in line with the prevailing market conditions.

ii. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments if a counterparty default on its obligations. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk arises majorly from trade receivables/ unbilled revenue and other financial assets.

Other financial assets are bank deposits with banks and hence, the Group does not expect any credit risk with respect to these financial
assets,

With respect to other financial sssets, the Group has constiluted teams to review the receivables on periodic basis and to take necessary
mitigations, wherever required. The Group applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurgment and recogmition of impaiment
losses on trade receivables and unbilled revenue. The Group follows the simplified approach for recognition of impairment allowance on
trade receivables wherein, it recognises impairment allowance based on lifetime ECLs at cach reporting date. At the balance sheet date,
there was ne significant concentration of credit risk and exposure thereon,

iii. Liquidity Risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of borrowings and lease
contracts. The Group has assessed the concentration of risk with respeet to refinanemg its debt and concluded it to be low. The table below
sumnyarises the matunty protile of the Group's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted paviments.

Maturity period March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Financial liabilities - Current
Current borrowings - term loans from banks Within | year 8007 2.801
Current borrowings - loans from related parties Within 1 year 4000 -
Current borrowings - bank opverdraft Repayable on demand 3463 403
Current borrowings - Debentures Within | vear 100 54
Trade pavables Withm | vear 3.812 173
Lease liabilities Within | vear 204 -
Other financial lrabilities Within | year £ 2 3,104
Financial liabilities - Non Current
Mon-Current borrowings - term loans from banks Between |-10 years 53795 61.260)
MNon-Current borrowings - loans from related partics Between =10 years 13,790 17,790
Non-Current borrowings - Debentures = Between [-10 years - 100
Lease liabilites St S AN Between =30 vears +41.581 19.560
Other financial habilines ‘-;‘.\\\ Between 1-3 vears 34 208

o
Bengalury| @
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32 Defined benefit plan -

Gratuity

The Group operates defined gratuity plan for its employees. Under the plan, every employee who has completed at least five years of service gets a gratuity on
departure at 13 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of serv ice.

The following tables summarises the components of net benefit expenses recognised in the statement of profit

sheet with respect to gratuity. The defined benefit plan is unfunded, except as othenwise stated.
Changes in the defined benefit obligation ('DBO’) and fair value of plan assets ('FVoPA') - Year ended March 31, 2025

and loss and amount recognised in the balance

Espaase chargal Remeasurement (gains)/losses in other comprehensive income
profit or loss
Retu;: T plan Actiasial Atiigrial Contribu-
.o | Opening Sub-total | Benefits e changes changes | Experie- [ Sub-total| tions | Closing
Gratuity - 5 : {excluding b i g i als
balance | Service | Interest | included | paid nounts | ATising from arising nee | included by balance
cost | expense | in profit a ? changes in | from changes| adjustm- in employer
included L 4 2z g
or loss 2 2 demographic | in financial ents oCI
in net interest H 4
assumptions | assumptions
expense)
DBO 142 55 10 63 121) - (7 17 36 46 - 232
FVoPA - - - - 112) 2 - - - 2 49 39
Net 142 55 10 65 (L] (2) (7 17 36 44 (49) 193
liability
Changes in the defined benefit obligation ('DBO') and fair value of plan assets ('FVoPA') - Year ended March 31, 2024
Expense charged to profit or Remeasurement (gains)/losses in other comprehensive income
Baics 0t Bt Actuarial Actuarial : .
assets . Contribu-
. Sub-total ; changes changes | Experie- | Sub-total J :
. .. | Opening . : Benefits | (excluding i i 3 tions Closing
Gratuity Service | Interest | included z arising from arising nee included
balance p paid amounts S . : by balance
cost expense | in profit C changes in  |from changes| adjustm- in §
included e i B employer
or loss . 5 demographic | in financial ents oc1
in net interest i -
assumptions | assumptions
expense)
DBO 106 40 7 47 (12 - {3} 3 | 1 142
FVoPA - - - = - = - & = = -
Net 106 40 7 47 (12) - (3) 3 1 1 - 142
liability

The principal assumptions used

in determining gratusty

oblizations are shown below:

Particulars

March 31,2025

March 31,2024

Discount rate 6.65% 7.11%

Future salary benefit levels 7 3% 7.38%

Mortality rate 100% of TALM 2012-| 100 of TALM 2012-2014
2014

4
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A guantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as shown below:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Assumptions Discount Rate Salary Growth Rate Discount Rate Salary Growth Rate
Sensitivity Level -1% + 1% -1% ¥ 1% -1% + 1% -1% + 1%
Impact on DBO 52 34 (34) 52 37 (28) (28) 37
%y change compared to base 27" -18% -18% 2% 26%)| -20% =207 26%
due to sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes
in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the
defined benefit obligation,

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Weighted average duration (based on discounted cashflows) - 5 years
The maturity profile of defined benefit obligation is as befow:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Within | vear 47 40
Between | and 3 vears 137 70
More than 5 vears 199 87
Total expected payments 383 197

Expected contributions to the defined benefit plan asset (investment in insurance fund) for the next annual reporting period is Rs. 29 lakhs (March 31, 2024 Nil)

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may vary overtime. Thus, the Group is
exposed to various risks in providing the above gratuity benefit. the most significant of which are as follows:

Interest Rate risk : The plan exposes the Group to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an erease in the ultimate cost of providing
the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the lability.

Liquidity Risk : This is the risk that the Group is not able to meet the short term gratuity pay-outs. This may arise due to non availability of sufficient cashr/cash
equivalents to meet the habilities,

Salary Escalation Risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future,
Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will

have a bearing on the plan's liability

Demographic Risk : The Group has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Group is exposed to the risk of actual
experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumption,

[

©
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34

Fair values

The fair value of the financial assets and liahilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing

parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale, The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

1) The management assessed that the carrying values of cash and bank balances, trade receivables, trade pavables, and other financial assets and liabilities

approximate their fair values largely due to their short-term maturities,

ii) The management assessed that the carrying values of bank deposits. borrowings and other financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair values based on
cash flow discounting using parameters such as interest rates, tenure of instrument, creditworthiness of the customer and the risk characteristics of the financed

project. as applicable

i) Also refer note 5 for investments measured at fair value through profit or loss,

These financial assets and financial labilities are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due 1o the use of unobservable inputs as explained

above. There have been no transfers between levels during the year,

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group’s financial instruments:

Mareh 31, 2025 Muarch 31, 2024
Particulars Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
Value (Level 3) Value (Level 3)
Financial Assets
Muasured we amortised cost
Trade receivables 2,301 2,301 2176 2,176
Cash and cash equivalents 1,077 1,077 798 798
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,159 1,159 1228 1,228
Other financial assets 2,180 2,180 1,339 1.339
Measwred at far value throngh profin or loss
Investment 6 6 6 6
Financial Liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
Borrowings 61.732 61.732 60.119 60.119
Trade payables 3,812 3812 2733 2,733
Lease liabilities 14,020 14,020 11,834 11,834
Other financial liabilities 2,366 2,366 3,313 3.313

Capital management

The Group's objectives of capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. In order to maintain or adjust the eapital structure, the Group may adjust the
return to shareholders, issue/ buvback shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in

economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity plus net debtas below

- Equity represents total equity of the Group.

- Net Debt includes borrowings (non-current and current), trade payables, lease liabilities and other financial liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents and bank

balances other than cash and cash equivalents.

Gearing rativ (D=A/C)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Borrowings 61.732 60,119
Trade payables 3.812 2333
Lease liabilities 14,020 11,834
Other financial liabilities 2.366 3,313
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents {2.236) (2.026)
Net Debt (A) 79,694 75,973
Equity share capital 28,143 100
Instruments entirely equity in nature 150 28,193
Other equity and non-controlling interests (18.060) (20.392)
Equity (B) 10,233 7,901
Equity plus net debt (C=A +B) 89,917 83,874
RO Q1%

In order to achieve the ubjective of maximizing shareholders value, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, atms to ensure that it meets financial
covenants altlached to the interest-bearing borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Any significant breach in mecting the financial covenants would
allow the bank to call borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of above mentioned interest-bearing borrowings

No changes were made in the objectives. policies or processes for managing capital during the current and previous vears.
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35 Additional regulatory information not disclosed elsewhere in the financial information

36

(i) There are no procesdings initiated or are pending against the Group for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

{ii) The Group does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act,
1956.

{iii} The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC bevond the statutory period.

{1v) The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

{v) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Group to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“'Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediaries shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behall of the Group ("Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uliimate Beneficianes

{vi) No funds have been received by the Group from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (~Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficianes

{vii) The Group does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income fax Act, 1961

{viii) The Group is not a declared Wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.

The Group has defined process to take daily back-up of books of account in electronic mode on servers physically located in India. However, the
backup of the books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode with respect to individual hotel units of the Holding
Company has not been maintained on servers physically located in [ndia on daily basis.

Further, the Group has used accounting software (SAP $/4 HANA by the Holding Company and Tally Prime by the Subsidiary Company) for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the accounting software, except that audit trail feature is not emabled for certain changes made, if any. using
privileged’ administrative access rights to the application and the underlying database and in respeet of individual hotel units of the Holding Company
wherein its accounting software did not have the audit trail feature enabled throughout the year. Further no instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with was noted in respect of the accounting software to the extent audit trail feature is enabled. Additionally, the audit trail in respect of the
relevant prior year has not been preserved by the Holding company as per the statutory requirements for record retention,

The management 15 taking steps to ensure that the books of account are maintained as required under the applicable statute.
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37 Group Information
The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group includes a component as detailed below:

Subsidiary
. _ Country of R hebd B thie G
‘ ) Principal activities Incorporation / & Equity interest held by the Group
Name of the entity g
Principal place of
business March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
SRP Prosperita Hotel Ventures Limited Hospitality Services India S0.01% 50.01%

Financial information of subsidiary that has non-controlling interests:
(i) Summary of assets and liabilities

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Current assets 643 39
Non-current assets 12,491 13,047
Current liabilities (2,130) {2,399)
Non-current liabilities (4.857) (6,035}
Total Equity 6,147 5452
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 4,602 4,255
MNon-Controlling Interests | 345 1,197
6,147 5,452

(ii) Summary of profit and loss

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Total Income 6527 5,925
Profit/(loss) for the year 694 1,254
Total comprehensive income 695 1,257

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 347 629
Non-Controlling Interests 348 628
695 1,257

(iii) Summary of cash flows

Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Net cash flow (used in)/from operating activities 2,765 2,175

Met cash Mow (used in) investing activities (489) (263)
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (2,038) (2,059)
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) during the vear 218 (147)

38 Additional information to consolidated financial statements based on the audited financial statements of the component of the Group

(i) Net Assets/ (Liabilities)

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
As % of As Y of
consolidated net Amount consolidated net Amount
assets assets
Parent
Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited 125% 12,815 141% 11,178
Subsidiary
SRP Prosperita Hotel Venture Limited 6% 6,147 698 3452
Sub total 185% 18,962 2105 16,630
Elimination and consolidation adjustments -100% (10.274) -125% 19.926)
Sub total B5%: 8.688 85", 6,704
Non-controlling interest in the subsidiary 13% 1.545 3% 1197
Consolidated Total 100% 10,233 100% 7.901
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(ii) Total comprehensive income
For the year ended March 31, 2025

Share in profit/(loss)

Share in other comprehensive

Share in total comprehensive income

income
As % of As Y of
AL Sk lidated other consolidated total
Name of the entity consolidated  Amount Enaiie i Amount v Amount
comprehensive comprehensive
Profit or loss 5 b

income income
Parent
Brizade Hotel Ventures Limited T1% 1,672 103% (35) 70" 1,637
Subsidiary
SRP Prosperita Hotel Venture Limited 29%, B84 -3 1 30% 693
Sub total 100% 2,366 100%: (34) 100% 1,332
Elimination and consolidation adjustments -15% 1347) 3% i -13% (348)
Sub total 85% 2,019 103% (35) 85% 1,984
Non-controlling interest in subsidiary:
Share in profiv|{ loss) 15% 347 =30 1 15% 348
Consolidated Total 100% 2,366 100% (34) 100% 1,332

For the vear ended March 31, 2024

Share in profit/(loss)

Share in other comprehensive

Share in total comprehensive income

income
As % of As % of As % of
As %
solid: consoli I
Name of the entity consolidated  Amount s n_lhcr Amount opmalitated t.om Amount
comprehensive comprehensive
Profit or loss : <
income income

Puarent
Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited 60% 1,860 37% 4 60%0 1,864
Subsidiary
SRP Prosperita Hotel Venture Limited 40% 1,254 430 3 40% 1,257
Sub total 100% 3114 100% 7 100%, 3.121
Elimination and consolidation adjustments 200 (627) <1d% (1 2209, (628)
Sub total 80%, 2,487 86% 6 B0 2493
Non-controlling interest in subsidiary:
Share in profit/( loss) 2% 6527 14% | 20% 628
Consolidated Total 100% 3.114 100% 7 100% 3.121

The Group has accumulated losses of Rs. 27,276 lakhs (March 31, 2024 Rs. 29 260 lakhs ) and total equity of Rs. 10,233 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 7.901 lakhs).
The Group’s current liabilities exceed its current assets by Rs, 11,403 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 6,077 lakhs). The Group is in the initial phase of its operations
and Brigade Enterprises Limited, the ultimate parent company. is committed to provide financial and operational support to the Group for its profitable operations in

the foreseeable future,
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40 Standards notified but not yet effective

There are no standards that are notified and not yet effective as on the date.
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